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€))
2015 31
2015 31 2016 31 2017 31 2018 31 2019 31
@
2015 31 |2016 31 |2017 31 |2018 31 |2019 31
IFRSC )
30,292 25,022 25,989 28,575 28,839
4,602 (1,940) (991) 2,923 2,076
3,483 (1,440) (744) 2,194 1,120
- - - - 6,455
6,613 6,569 6,113 6,708 6,383
(GD)
113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000
20,220 18,780 18,036 20,230 31,215
1,863,864 2,218,997 2,044,153 2,467,390 2,591,283
178,938 166,195 159,611 179,027 276,239
30,823.01 (12,743.36) (6,584.07) 19,415.93 9,911.50
- - - - 57,123.89
1.08 0.85 0.88 0.82 1.20
18.85 (7.38) (4.04) 11.47 4.35
444,766 (11,203) 69,510 (151,954) (66,202)
(446,767) 10,929 (69,551) 152,162 66,557
550 270 225 422 779
C )
C ) 454 113,000
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2019 28,839 28,575
19,531 13,480 804 747
33,793 24,473
34,073 26,321
2,076 2,923 956
729 2019 1,120 2,194
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®
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2019

31

2019 31 2018 31

3,27 28,839 28,575
3,27 (19,531) (13,480)
9,308 15,095

4,27 (804) @747)
5 ©7) -

6 33,793 24,473

7 (34,073) (26,321)

« D 8 - (135)
8,127 12,365

9,10 (133) (110)
11,27 (5,918) (9,332)
(6,051) (9,442)

2,076 2,923

12 (956) (729)
1,120 2,194
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2019 2018

31 31
5,13,23,24,25,27 239,071 229,946
13,14,23,24,25,27 80,157 101,374
12 - 2,931
319,228 334,251
5,13,23,25,27 2,053,741 1,953,086
13,14,23,24,25,27 44,839 48,979
5,13,15,23,27 779 422
12 - 12
5,13,16,27 172,696 130,640
2,272,055 2,133,139
2,591,283 2,467,390
17,26 6,383 6,708
26 1,321 1,321
26 10,643 1,694
18 12,868 10,507
31,215 20,230
13,19,23,24,26,27 439,064 917,759
13,20,23,24,26,27 1,057,153 511,809
13,14,23,24,25,27 158,917 125,173
12 172 -
1,655,306 1,554,741
13,24,27 575,681 494,798
13,19,23,26,27 63,756 103,327
13,20,23,24,26,27 218,037 262,331
13,14,23,24,25,27 38,382 26,300
12 66 -
13,21,27 8,840 5,663
904,762 892,419
2,560,068 2,447,160
2,591,283 2,467,390
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2018 6,708 1,321 - 1,694 10,507 20,230
17,26

IFRS - - 3,332 - 1,198 4,530

2018

6,708 1,321 3,332 1,694 11,705 24,760

- - - - 1,120 1,120

- - 5,292 - 43 5,335

- - 5,292 - 1,163 6,455

(325) - - 325 - -

2019 31 6,383 1,321 8,624 2,019 12,868 31,215

2017 6,113 1,321 - 2,289 8,313 18,036
17,26

- - - - 2,194 2,194

- - - - 2,194 2,194

595 - - (595) - -

2018 31 6,708 1,321 - 1,694 10,507 20,230
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2019 31 2018 31

1,120 2,194

(48,884) (734)

1,592 291

13 (109,965) (353,174)

80,883 227,795

13,14,23,24 (948) (18,787)

13,14,23,24 48,108 41,694

16 (42,044) (51,358)

21 3,936 125

(66,202) (151,954)

13,19,23 6,171 394,832

13,20,23,24 388,895 151,180

13,19,23 (56,597) (308,126)

13,20,23,24 (271,912) (85,724)

66,557 152,162

355 208

2 11)

422 225

15 779 422
2019 31 2018 31

(19,139) (13,035)

28,243 28,834

12 (428) (389)
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OooooOodd
2018 2019 31
(€))

552,739 (50,426) (5,246) 5,753 502,820
1,212,933 116,983 (54,726) - 1,275,190
1,765,672 66,557 (59,972) 5,753 1,778,010

2017 2018 31

940,752 86,706 (6,077) (295) 1,021,086

703,045 65,456 5,639 - 774,140
1,643,797 152,162 (439) (295) 1,795,226

1) 2019 31 IFRS
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1096HA
Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam
33221661
NHI
2019 31 2019 12
2.1
2019 31 EU
IFRS
2.2
IFRS

24
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©
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IFRS
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h)

2.4

2.5
2018 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
2.7

2014 IASB IFRS 15
IFRS IAS 39
2016 1ASB
EU 2018

2016 IASB IFRS 16 IFRS
EU 2019

2.6

1ASB 2019 31
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1AS 1AS
1ASB

2020

IFRIC 23 -
IFRIC 23

2.7 IFRS

IFRS

2018

IFRS IFRS
IFRS
IFRS

IFRS
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1AS 1AS
EU
IAS 12
IFRIC 23 2019
IFRS
2018 31 IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39
2018
IAS 39
IFRS
IAS 39
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IFRS

- 468,347

6,224

- IAS 39 IFRS

- IAS 39 IFRS
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OooooOodd
2018 IAS 39 IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS
2018 81 ® 2018
5,24,27 229,946 - (110) - 229,836
14,24,25,27 101,374 (21,221) - - 80,153
(21,221)
2,931 - - (1,509) 1,422
334,251 (21,221) (110) (1,509) 311,411
5,27 1,953,086 - (75) - 1,953,011
14,24,25,27 48,979 (5,084) - - 43,895
(5,084)
15 422 - - - 422
16,27 127,712 - - - 127,712
12 - - - 12
5,16,27 2,928 - - - 2,928
2,133,139 (5,084) (75) - 2,127,980
2,467,390 (26,305) (185) (1,509) 2,439,391
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IAS 39 IFRS
2018 31 ® 2018

19,24,27 917,759 (392,149) - - 525,610
(392,149)

20,24,27 511,809 372,895 - (5,432) 879,272

392,149

(19,254)

14,24,25,27 125,173 (1,967) - - 123,206
(1,967)

1,554,741 (21,221) - (5.,432) 1,528,088

27 494,798 - - - 494,798

19,27 103,327 (76,198) - - 27,129
(76,198)

20,24,27 262,331 71,429 - (99) 333,661

76,198

(4,769)

14,24,25,27 26,300 (315) - - 25,985
(315)

21,27 1,937 - - - 1,937

21,27 3,726 - - (693) 3,033

892,419 (5,084) - (792) 886,543

2,447,160 (26,305) - (6,224) 2,414,631
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12
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IFRS

12 12

12
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PD CEAD
LGD
CEAD

S&P
12

2018 IFRS 185

IAS 39 IFRS
2018 31 2018

IAS 39

IFRS
- (110) (110)
- (110) (110)

IAS 39

IFRS

- (64) (64)
- (11) (11)
- ) 5
- (185) (185)

IFRS 2018

65/223



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

OooooOodd
IFRS 4,530
3,332
IAS 39
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39 2018 31 -
4,442
(1,110)
IFRS (2018 ) 3,332
IAS 39 2018 31 10,507
IFRS
(1,063)
2,845
(185)
(399)
IFRS (2018 ) 11,705

IFRS 4,530
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21

IFRS

27

27

27

2019 31 2018 31
28,839 28,573
- 2
28,839 28,575
2019 31 2018 31
(312) (2,877)
(109) (18)
(19,107) (10,583)
(©) (&)
(19,531) (13,480)
2018 31 2,723
2019 31 2018 31
(804) (747)
(804) (747)
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14

AAA
BBB+
BB+

cC

A-
BBB-
BB-
B+

2019

31

779
2,296,567
169,186

282

2,466,532

282

2018

31

422
2,185,908
127,712

2,314,042

2019 31

2018 31

124,996
(1,153)

150,353
(1,937)

123,843

148,416

ccc
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2019 31
AAA / BBB- 2,296,567 - - 2,296,567
BB+ / CCC - - - -
CC/D - - - -
2,296,567 - - 2,296,567
(282) - - (282)
2,296,285 - - 2,296,285
2019 31
2018
(€3} 174 11 185
(64) (1) (75)
92 30 122
46 - 46
4 - 4
2019 31
252 30 282
1) 2019 31 IFRS
2)
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2019 31 2018 31
27,721 23,561
6,072 912
33,793 24,473
2019
23
2019 31 2018 31
(34,073) (26,321)
(34,073) (26,321)
IFRS
IFRS
2018
2018 8,261
2018 IFRS
43

5,292
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2019

31
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OooooOodd
2019 31 2018 31
- (137)
- 2
- (135)
2019 31 2018 31
(102) (89)
(14) (10)
an (11)
(133) (110)
13 2018 11 2019
2018
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11
2019 31 2018 31
27 (4,286) (7,596)
26 (475) (526)
(1,006) (1,048)
€1)) (80)
27 (62) an
(2) (5)
(5,918) (9,332)
2018 31 APA
2018 28 2018
2022 31 APA 2019
2019 31 NHI
2019 31 NHI
4,286 2018 31 7,596
12
2019 31 2018 31
2019 31 2018 31
47%) (450)
@ -
(456) -
(24) 279)

(956) (729)

721223



2019

IFRS

IFRS

24.94

31

EDINETOOOO
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25

2021

OooooOodd
2019 31 2018 31

2,076 2,923

(519) (731)
@ -
(450) -
15 2

(956) (729)

25 2018 25 24.08 2018
20.5
2019 31 2018 31

12 4
428 389

(476) (450)
(30) 32
(66) 12
2,931 3,210
(1,114) -
(1,110) -
(399) -
(456) -

(24) 279)
172) 2,931
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2019 31 2018 31
2019 31 2018 31

(2,224) -

2,442 2,931

66 -

(456) -

172) 2,931

13
2019 31

2,292,812 - - - 2,292,812
- 124,996 - - 124,996
779 - - - 779
- 16 169,186 - - - 169,186
2,462,777 124,996 - - 2,587,773
- - 502,820 - 502,820
- - - 1,275,190 1,275,190
- - 575,681 - 575,681
- 197,299 - - 197,299
- 21 - - 1,153 - 1,153

- 197,299 1,079,654 1,275,190 2,552,143
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()

2018 31
2,183,032 - - - 2,183,032
- 150,353 - - 150,353
422 - - - 422
127,712 - - - 127,712
2,311,166 150,353 - - 2,461,519
- - 1,021,086 - 1,021,086
- - - 774,140 774,140
- - 494,798 - 494,798
- 151,473 - - 151,473
- - 1,937 - 1,937
- 151,473 1,517,821 774,140 2,443,434
2019 31 2018 31

22,410 22,866

53,917 65,455

31,611 34,306

15,213 23,131

1,845 4,595

124,996 150,353

90,736 50,437

50,857 61,340

51,211 34,355

1,662 748

2,833 4,593

197,299 151,473

2019 31 2018 31

751223
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909,592 894,144
1,384,985 1,563,832
544,973 555,497
30,100 48,100
229,365 327,350
3,099,015 3,388,923
16 21
2019 31 2018 31
169,186 127,712
3,510 2,928
172,696 130,640
ISDA
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2019

31

454
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373

2018

454 315,000

113,000

2019 31

oOoOooodn

2018 31

8,402
113
454

8,402
113
454

51,302
124.415

51,302
130.7472

6,383

6,708

2019 31

2018 31

8,402
6,383

8,402
6,708

2,019

1,694

31
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2019 31

2018 31

525,609
5,013
(22,537)
(69,276)
254

862,648
307,400
(137,199)
(111,557)

(3,533)

439,064

917,759

2019 31

2018 31

27,129
1,158

(34,060)
69,276
253

78,104
87,432

(170,927)
111,557

(2,839)

63,756

103,327

31 IFRS

2019 31

2018 31

879,272
303,714

(24,628)
(56,921)
(44,284)

516,744

104,935
(9,572)

(97,590)
(2,708)

1,057,153

511,809

781223
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1) 2019

6,463
31
IFRS

2019 31

21
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31

111,716

23,27

IFRS

2018 31

2018

1SDA

OooooOodd
2019 31 2018 31
333,662 186,301
85,181 46,245
(247,284) (76,152)
56,921 97,590
(10,442) 8,347
218,037 262,331
2019 31
8,261 2019
10,847 2018 31
1,063
2018 IFRS
130,688
2019 31 2018 31
1,153 1,937
7,687 3,726
8,840 5,663
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22

2019 31

146,540
23

CFO
EMB
GIRMC
GIRMC EMB

GIRMC

GRMC
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409,468 2018

EMB

GIRMC

GIRMC
EMB

GIRMC

oOoOooodn

31

CRO
EMB

GIRMC
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ooooood
GRMC
GIRMC

CRO

GIRMC

2019 31 2018 31
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CRM

2019 31

27

oOoOooodn

2019 31 2018 31

CRM

NHI  S&P

NHI

1SDA

2.3 e 2.7

2019 31
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EMB

30

@ @)
©)
4) ) ®)

EMB NHI  CFO EMB

52.81 2018 45.22
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2019 31
30 90
30 90
- 682,983 1,208,378 177,536 47,302 251,210 2,367,409
- 682,983 1,208,378 177,536 47,302 251,210 2,367,409
- 682,983 1,208,378 177,536 47,302 251,210 2,367,409
2018 31
30 90
30 90
- 745,609 1,134,713 84,567 38,250 248,676 2,251,815
- 745,609 1,134,713 84,567 38,250 248,676 2,251,815
- 745,609 1,134,713 84,567 38,250 248,676 2,251,815
2019 31
30 90
30 90
- 3,357 4,291 64,284 158,904 361,282 592,118
135,642 8,295 22,068 74,734 605,263 663,310 1,509,312
- 35,345 505,211 38,972 - - 579,528
- 276,410 133,058 - - - 409,468
135,642 323,407 664,628 177,990 764,167 1,024,592 3,090,426
135,642 323,407 664,628 177,990 764,167 1,024,592 3,090,426
2018 31
30 90
30 90
- 8,163 27,203 89,883 464,132 608,448 1,197,829
158,656 1,121 88,625 22,615 285,244 391,658 947,919
- 116,601 380,580 - - - 497,181
- 119,611 26,929 - - - 146,540
158,656 245,496 523,337 112,498 749,376 1,000,106 2,789,469
158,656 245,496 523,337 112,498 749,376 1,000,106 2,789,469

84/223



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

2019 31
30 90
30 90
13,308 1,769 3,360 13,780 46,806 107,388 186,411
13,308 1,769 3,360 13,780 46,806 107,388 186,411
- 1,030,441 91,768 13,933 121,611 198,106 1,455,859
- (1,027,547) (92,942) (9,953) (126,348) (137,137)  (1,393,927)

- 2,894 (1,174) 3,980 (4,737) 60,969 61,932
13,308 4,663 2,186 17,760 42,069 168,357 248,343

2018 31

30 90
30 90
22,449 1,862 3,606 15,008 53,756 106,823 203,504
22,449 1,862 3,606 15,008 53,756 106,823 203,504
- 322,876 119,034 9,647 117,996 254,358 823,911
- (322,343) (118,049) (4,899) (104,195) (146,499) (695,985)
- 533 985 4,748 13,801 107,859 127,926
22,449 2,395 4,591 19,756 67,557 214,682 331,430
€h)
) ORM
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©)
ENB GIRMC
ORM 1) 2) 3)
ORM
ORM
2019 31 2018 31
24
2019 31
239,071 237,964 -
439,064 392,706 -
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2018 31
229,946 226,013 -
917,759 861,392 -
2019 31 2018 31
124,996 - 66,334 58,662 150,353 - 89,629 60,724
22,410 - 11,571 10,839 22,866 - 13,983 8,883
53,917 - 10,861 43,056 65,455 - 19,360 46,095
31,611 - 26,948 4,663 34,306 - 28,593 5,713
15,213 - 15,213 - 23,131 - 23,131 -
1,845 - 1,741 104 4,595 - 4,562 33
124,996 - 66,334 58,662 150,353 - 89,629 60,724
197,299 - 135,676 61,623 151,473 - 90,165 61,308
90,736 - 79,521 11,215 50,437 - 41,554 8,883
50,857 - 7,983 42,874 61,340 - 14,661 46,679
51,211 - 43,756 7,455 34,355 - 28,642 5,713
1,662 - 1,662 - 748 - 748 -
2,833 - 2,754 79 4,593 - 4,560 33
1,275,190 - 1,089,453 185,737 774,140 - 738,908 35,232
1,472,489 - 1,225,129 247,360 925,613 - 829,073 96,540
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2019 31
52,432 54,942 55,624
6,096 8,748 5,414
- - 140,182
1,011 (5,013) (19, 430)
2,542 8,643 58,144
(3,419) (5,697) (54,197)
58,662 61,623 185,737
16,926 (16,791) 5,412

2018 31
43,742 44,240 47,293
17,820 17,922 1,394
- - 8,158
(3,509) (4,159) (2,203)
6,814 8,002 12,246
(4,143) (4,697) (31,656)
60,724 61,308 35,232
33,109 (32,534) 519

31 IFRS 9

88/223



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn
2019 31 2018 31
0TC
2019 31 2,542 2018 6,814
8,643 2018 8,002
2,577 2018 6,431
7,510
2018 6,431
2019 31 3,419 2018 4,143
5,697 2018 4,697
2,043 2018 3,040
3,742

2018 3,040
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DCF

PCVG

PCVG

PCVG
CFO

CFO
MVG

MVG CRO

Independent Price Verification Processes 1PV
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12
1PV
PCVG MVG
2019 31
()]
10,839 11,215 DCF ) 14.59-15.13%
43,056 42,874 DCF 0.04-2.31%
) 10.6-15.17%
(bp) 32.45-83.83
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
4,663 7,455 DCF 0.00-6.61%
%) 6.67-54.48%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.7-0.91
104 79 DCF 0.24-1.35%
35-350
- 185,737 DCF 0.04-2.31%
%) 11.5-15.20%
(bp) 32.45-60.90
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98

58,662 247,360
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2018 31
®
8,883 8,883 DCF ) 14.92-15.54%
46,095 46,679 DCF 0.17-2.93%
) 11.22-15.58%
(bp) 33.48-62.41
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
5,713 5,713 DCF 0.00-5.64%
%) 7.31-50.94%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.75-0.89
33 33 DCF 0.15-1.00%
35-35%
- 35,232 DCF 0.17-2.61%
) 11.22-15.54%
(op) 33.48-54.98
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.89

60,724 96,540

@
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640 2018 625
2019 31 2018 31
625 1,264
- 95
15 (734)

640 625
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25
2019 31
@ @ (€©))

64,824 - 64,824 (63,841) (983) -

277,237 - 277,237 - - 277,237

30,220 - 30,220 (27,536) - 2,684

372,281 - 372,281 (91,377) (983) 279,921

185,019 - 185,019 (91,377) (93,642) -

185,019 - 185,019 (91,377) (93,642) -

2018 31
@ @ (©))

67,382 - 67,382 (65,649) (1,733) -

202,647 - 202,647 - - 202,647

19,220 - 19,220 (16,692) - 2,528

289,249 - 289,249 (82,341) (1,733) 205,175

141,895 - 141,895 (82,341) (59,554) -

141,895 - 141,895 (82,341) (59,554) -
@
@
(©)

1SDA
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2019 31 2018 31
6,383 6,708
1,321 1,321
2,019 1,694
9,723 9,723

502,820 1,021,086
439,064 917,759
63,756 103,327
1,275,190 774,140
1,057,153 511,809
218,037 262,331
575,681 494,798
575,681 494,798
2,363,414 2,299,747
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27
i. NHI 2019 31
8,688 2018 9,503 ( ) 2019
31 NHI 1,509,600 2018 1,251,400
2019 31 NHI 205,900
2018 2019 31 NHI
21 2018
il NHI
2019 31 797
2018 739 2019 31 NHI 797
2018 739
. 11 NHI
4,286 2018 7,596
2019 31 4,286 2018 58
iv. 2019 31 NHI
444 2018 437
2019 31 NHI 209
2018 239
2019 31 2019
31 2018 31
i. 2019 31
20,151 2018 19,070
2019 31 783,494 2018
931,632 2019 31
203,568 2018 146,540 2019 31

76 2018
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iii. 1SDA
2019 31
64,824 185,019 2018
67,382 141,895
1SDA
16 21
2019 31
16,525 2018 14,674
3,391 2018 10,894
13,134 2018 3,780
2019 31
2018 2019 31
2018
2019 31
91
2018 123
16 21
28
2019 31
29 -
2019 31 1,120

2019

97/223



20

EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

98/223



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

INCOME STATEMENT
2019 2018

Note Milligns of JFY Millicns of JPY
Interest and similar income a2r 28,839 28,575
Interest and similar expense a (19.531) (13,480)
Met irterest income 9,308 15,085
Fee and coOmmission expense 4.27 (B04) (747)
Credit impairment [osses 3 (97 -
Met rading income & 33,793 24,473
Met loss on financial liabilities designated at
fair value through prafit or loss i (34,073) (26,321)
Other aperating gain/(loss) B - {135)
Met operating income B 12T 12 365
Salaries and social charges 8,10 (133) (110)
General and admirsstrative expenses 127 5.918) {9,332)
Total operating expenses 8,051) {9,442)
Profit before tax 2076 2823
Taxation expense 2 (S56) (729)
Profit for the year 1,120 2194
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

oOoOooodn

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items thal will not be reclassified to income statement
Change in fair value attributable to change in the
credit risk of financial labilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss (after tax)

Other comprehensive income for the year, after
tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

2019 2018
Millions of JFY Milliong of JEY
1,120 2194
5335
5336 -
6,455 2194

The Company did not have Cther Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2018,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINAMNCIAL POSITION

Mon-current assets

Loars and advances to affiliates
Dervative financial assets
Deferred tax agsets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loars and advances to affiliates
Dervative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Income tax receivable

Cther assets

Total current assets

Total agsets

Shareholder's equity and liabilities

Shareholder's equity
Issued and paid-up capital
Share premium

Reserve

Retained earnings

Total shareholders equty

MNon-current liabilities

Debt issued and other bamowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Dervative financial iabdlities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Barrowing from affihates

Debt issued and other borrowing
Financial hiabilibes designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Dervative financial habilities

Income tax payable

Cither liabilities

Total current liabdities

Total liabilities

Total shareholder's equity and liabilities

HNote

51323242527
13.14,23.24.25.27
12

S13 027
131423242527
513152327
12
5131827

17.26

]

13,19,23.24,26,27

13.20,23,24.26.27
13.14,23,24 25,27
12

12,2427
1319232827

13.20,23,24 26,27
131423242527
12
13.11.27

101/223

2018 2018

Millians af JPY Millsons of JPY
239,071 228 945
80,157 101,374
- 2931
319,228 334251
2,053,741 1,853,086
44 539 48979
774 422
- 12
172 66 130640
2272055 2133139
2,581,283 2,457 380
6,383 8708
1,321 1,321
10,643 1,604
12 868 10,507
31,215 20,230
4359 064 917,759
1,067,153 511,809
158,917 125173
172 =
1,655 306 1,554 741
575,681 484 798
63,756 103,327
218,037 26233
38382 26,300
GE .
8840 5 663
S04 762 BSZ 419
2 560 068 2 447 160
2.591.283 2 467 390

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

0EZ'0Z mau,a_. FE3'L - LZE'L wam.m BLOZ yeWy LE e Sy
- - (GEG) - - CES uonen|ens abueyaxa
[Epdes pajeunLcuap cng
PELZ PEL'Z = = = . awoou aasuayasdwod [EoL
FEL T FELE - - - - pouad ay) o g
aso'al cie's BEZT - LZE'L £LL'e (a7 2L s200n) LLOE Iudy | e sy
Al JO SUOH W Al JO SUo|Iw Al 0 SUOIW Al JO SUDHIY Al 0 SUDIIW Acil o SUDH|IN
Kunba sBuies 2M253) UDHE|SUES] aniasal winjwaid aieys lepdea
s Japjoyaleys paue}ay foauaung HPID UMD dn-pied pue panss|
1EyoL
SLZ'LE 9821 BLOT tZa's LZE'L £8E'D BLOZ ydaely g e sy
- - GZE - - {5zl uonenjes afusyaxa
|EpdED pajeuILcUap cung
got'a £alL'L - 675 - - sy ansuayasdwod ejo L
CEL G [ - 6L G - aweoul ansusyaiduicd Jag
0zL'L 0z L L - - - - polad auyp Joj wies
08 %2 S0 L1 FEa') TEE'E LZE) BOL'S 8LOZ
[dy | e se asue|eq pajejsay
OES'y BELL - ZEE'S - 6 Sudl
J0 uonesidde (e uo sabueysy
O0EZ'02 Los'0L FE9°L = LZE'L BOL'S (5221 s=ion) gLoz udy | je sy
Al JO SO I Al 9 SUniI Al J0 SO0y Al §0 SUBIpy Al JO SUDIIY Al 40 SUD|Iy
Kynba shuiuiea aAla5a) UOIJE|SuUe) ETYELET] wniwad aleys endes
5 Japjoyaleys pauiejay Aauaung HPaUD UMD dn-pied pue panss|
[ejol

ALIND3 NI STONYHO 40 LNIWILYLS

‘NN FONYNId 3d08N3 YANWON

102/223



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Prafit for the year

Adjustments for:
Met loss fram financing activities
Cthers

Cperating assets and operating liabilties
Increase in loans and advances to affiliates
Increase in borrowing from affiliates
Increase in dervative financial assets
Increase in dervative financial liabilities
Increase in other operating assets
Increase in other operating kabilibes

Het cash flows used in operating activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from debt issued and other borrowing
Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at

fair value through profit or loss

Redemption of debt izsued and other borrowing
Redemption of financial abilities designated at

fair value through profit or loss

Net cash flows from financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Met foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Operational cash flows

Interast paid
Interest received
Taxes paid

13

13,14,23.24
15,1423, 24
16
3

13.19,23

13202324
13,18,23

13.20,23,24
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2018 218

Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
1,120 2194
{48,884) (734
1,592 291
(109, 965) (353,174)
a0.883 227795
(248) (18,787)

48 108 41 584
(42 044) (51,358)

1 1-25
(B8, 202) (151,954)
6,171 384 832

388 B95 151,180
(56.597) (308,1256)
(271.912) (85.724)
66,557 152,162
355 208

2 {11)

422 225

k] 422

2019 2018

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
119,135) {13,035)
28,243 28834
(428) (389)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Momura Europe Finance MY, (the “Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiany of Momura Holdings, Inc.
("NHI"), a company incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of America and Singapore,
which is alsa the uifimate parent of the Compary.

The Compary, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the MNetherlands, iz a limited liability company
under the Dutch 2w and its regstered office is at Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam,
the MNetherands (Chamber of Commerce number 33221651).

The Company's principal activity is to act as a funding entity for MHI and its subsidianies (collectively the
“Momura Group™).

The Company’s firancial staterments for the year ended 31 March 2018 shall be submitted to the Annual
General Mesting of Sharehalders on 12 July 2019 for adoption. The sharehalder's mesting can reject the
financial statements but cannot amend them,

2. Accounting policies
21 Baslis of accounting

The financial staternents of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared in
accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European
Union ("EU). The financial staternernts have also been prepared in agcordance with the requirements
in Part 9 Boak 2 of the Dutch Civil Code,

The financial statemeants have been prepared an a historical cost basis except far dervative financial
instruments and financial iabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all been
rmeasured at fair valua.

The financial statements are presented in Japanese Yen (“JFY") and all values are rounded to the
nearast million ("Millions of JPY™) except where ctherwise stated.

22 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial siatements requires management fo make judgements,
estmates and assumplions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilties,
and the accompanying disclosures, Where necessary, due to first time adoption of IFRS 8, management
made new judgements, estimates and assumplions required by the standard.

Ealr value of financial i

Significant amount of judgements and estimates were applied to the fair value of certain financial assets
and financial kabilities. Various valuation techriques are used to determnine fair values of financial assets
and financial habilities, where these fair values cannat be derived from an active market Obsenvable market
data is used in the valuation models as far as feasible. If no observable data is available, a degree of
judgement s required to determine fair values, Detailed information about the fair value of finarcial
instruments and valuation technigues are set out in Nate 24,

| irm financial

The Comparny assesses expected credit logses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at
fair value through profit or loss, together with loan commitmerts and financial guarantee contracts on a
forward-looking basis. The Company recognises a loss allowance at each reporting date, Detailed
irformation abaut the judgements and estimates made by the Company when calculating expected
credit losses are set out in Mote 2.7,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23  Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in JPY, which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Compary

Fargign currency transactions during the perod are translated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
transaction

Subsequent to initial recognition monetary items are transiated at closing rate and non-monetary tems at
historical spot rate at each staterment of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
financial assets and financial liabilties that are monetany assets and monetary liabiliies are recognised in
the income statement.

b)  Operating income
i Interest income ard expense

Interest ncome and expense for all financial instruments, except for those classified as dervatives held for
trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised under Inferest
and similar income or interest and similar expense using the effective interest rate ("EIR™) method

The EIR methed is a method of caloulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or ability (or a group
of assets and liabilties) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
periods. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when approprate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the instrument. This calculation takes into account the impact of all fees and
commissions, paid or received, directly attributable to the transactions, and discounts or premiums that
are integral part of the EIR method

()  Metfees and commission income

Loan origination fees are recognised in the income statement as an adjustment to the vield on the financial
assels camed at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Upfront fees received and paid on derivative financial instruments are recognised as part of the initial fair
walue measurement of the related financial instrumment.

c) Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value. A description of the Company's
policies with regards to its application of fair value measurements to significant financial instruments is
as follows:

{iy Deterrnination af fair values and fair value measurement

The Carnpany measures firancial instruments, such as denivatives, at fair value at each balance sheet
date. For other financial instruments which are measured at amortised cost, fair values are disclosed in
Mate 24

Fair value is the pnce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a katality in an erderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement s
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The principal of the mast advantageous market must be accessible by the Compary.

Where guoted marke! prices of broker/dealar guotabions are not available for financial instiuments,
prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of fair
value, Such financial instruments are valued using madels with significant unobsenable inputs such as
correlation, long-dated volatility, or other uncbservable inputs,  Valuation prcing models consider
contractual terms, position size, underying asset prices, interest rates, dividend rates, time value,
volatility ard ather statistical measurements for the relevant instruments ar for instruments with similar
characteristics. These models also incorporate adjustments relating to market liquidity adjustments.
These adustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The valuation
techinigque used maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of Companmy-specific inputs
which are unobservable in the market.

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amaunt and iming of unrealised
gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing madels ar underlying assumplions
could produce different financial results. Any changes in the fixed income, equity, and foreign exchange
and commodity markets can impact the Company's estimates of fair value in the future, patentially
affecting trading gains and losses and also gains and losses on financial iebilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. The Company's estimates of fair value may involve greater subjectivity due
to the lack of transparent market data available upon which to base assumplions of underlying valuation
pricing models.

Thi Company applies exception in IFRS 13.48 to measure the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities on the basis of mid-price. For hybrid instruments where embedded derivatives are separated
and financial instruments which are designated through profit of [oss, the expasune on such instruments
is affset by the hedging dervatives.

All gairs and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as held
for trading are recognised under Nt frading incomeadioss).

All assets and labilties for which fair value s measured of disclozsed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilties accessible by the
Company at the measurement date.

Level 2 Quoted prices ininactive markets or prices containing other inputs which are observable, either
directly or indirectly. Valuation techniques using observable inputs reflect assumplions used by
market participants in pricing financial instruments and are besed on data obtained from
independent market sources at the measurement dale.

Level 3 Uncbservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement of the financial instrament.
Valuation techniques using unobeenqable inputs reflect management's assumplions about the
estimates used by other market participants in valuing similar financial instruments. These
valuation techmgues are developed based onthe best available information at the measurement
date.

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilibies
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

For assels and liabilities that are recegnised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonsation at the begnning of each reporting period.

()  Recogrition of day 1 gains and losses
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument s normally the transaction price (e the fair value of
consideration given or received). However, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on
avaluation pricing madel incorporating only obsenvable parameters inthe market or on other abservable
current market transactions in the same instrument, without madification or repackaging Where such
valuation techniques are used to derve fair values from market abservable inputs, the difference
between fair value and the transaction price is initially recognised in the income statement

Valuation techmgues incorparating significant unobservable parameters may also be used to determine
fair value at inceplion In such cases, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
only recognised in the income statement when the inpuls become observable or when the instrument
is derecagnised.

(i} Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

The Company seeks to minimize the market rsks by entering into denvative agreements to
economically hedge the exposures of medium term notes. The value of hedging derivative and the
associated note have the same perfarmance which offset each other, thus by applying the fair value
opticn (FVO) to notes the Company expects to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation
wiolatility.

Before 1 April 2018, the Company applied the FVO to the following financial instruments:

- Fixed-rate plain vanilla notes
- Certain hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are not separated

Starting from 1 April 2018, the Comparny applies the FVO to all newly issuved notes under IFRS 8. The
Compary manages and evaluates performance of financial labilities (issued nates) in such a way that the
measurement of the portfalio of notes at fair value through profit or loss pravides more relevant information
for risk maragement purposes and transparent understanding of the Compary’s financial statements

d) Financial instru ments

Financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9 are divided into three classifications, those measured
at amortised cost, those measuwred at fair value through profit or loss and those measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Fmancial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through prefit or less, and all ather financial
liabilties are measured at amortised cost unless the FYO is applied

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition except equity
instruments and derivatives based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the
assets and the instruments' contractual cash flow characteristics. Even though the Company’s financial
assets may meet the critenia to be classified at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Company may, at initial recognition, apply the FVO to those financial assets if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as “accounting mismatch®) that would othernwise arise from measuring assets or iabilities or recognising
gains and losses on them on different bases.

(i} Dervative financial instruments

Financial instrurments at fair value through prafit or less include dervative financial instrurnernts held for
trading, Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if (1) they are acquired
of incurred principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2) on inifial recognitian
they are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that ane managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or (3) they are derivatives, except
for a derivative that is a financial guarantee or a designated and effective hedging instrurment.

The Comparny uses dervatives to economically hedge exposures such as ifs interest and foreign
exchange exposures. All derivatives are recogrised initially on the date when the Company becomes a
party to the contract at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value, dervatives with positive fair
values carmied as assets and with negative fair values as liabilties in the statement of financial position,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derivatives embedded in contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if (1) their econamic charactenstics and fisks are not closely related 1o those of the host contracts; (2)
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative in a forward locking contract, and (3) the hybnd (combined) instrument is not measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recagnised in profit or kess, These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. Reassessmient
only acgurs when thera is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required.

(i)  Financial liabilites designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilties classified in this category are those that have been designated by management as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the designation eliminates, or
significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would atherwise anse from measunng the assets
or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis,

These instruments are recognised initially at fair value and transaction costs are taken directly to the
income statement. For these instruments, fair value changes aftributable to the Company’s credit nisk
are presented in other comprehensive income, while all other fair value changes are presented in profit
of loss. Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs
associated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under
Neat gainfloss) on financial liabities designated af fair value through profit oF [oss, except for the
currency translation effect which is included in Net trading incomadioss).

Loan commitments designated as financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss are within the
scope of IFRS 9, These loan commitments are initially recognised on the date when the Comparty
becormes a party to the contract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported under Net gainfloss) on financial abites designated at fair value through profit of lbss.

(i}  Financial instrurments at amortised cost

a) Financal assals sl amotised cost
Afinancial asset is classified and subsequently measured at amortized cost, unless designated
under FYO, if the financial asset is held in a Hold to Collect business model and the contraciual
cash flows are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest.

Under this measurement category, the financial asset is measured at fair value at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and adjusted for any impairment allowance.

b} Financial liabilies at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amontised cost include the host contract of certain structured bonds that
are bifurcated and other borrowings. Financial lizbilities at amortised cost are initially
recognised on the date when the Compary becomes a party to the confract. After initial
measurement, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
methad,

initial measurement of inancial instruments

When a financial asset or financial labdity is recognised initially, the Company measures it at its fair
value including, in the case of a financial asset or financial liakility not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquistion or issue of the financial asset or financial
liability,

Derecogrilion

A financial asset is deracagmsed when the I‘igh'tﬁ to receve cash flow from the asset have e‘XP‘iI'Ed ar
when the Company has transferred its rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the lEbility is discharged, cancelled or expires,

When an existing financial iatility i5 replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing habilty are substantially modfied, such an exchange ar modification
15 treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liatdity, and the diference
in the respactive carrying amaounts is recognised in the incame statemant

) Impairment

Under IFRS 9, the Company is required to record a loss allowance for expected credit losses for all
loans and other debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The loss allowance is measured based on the
expected credit losses that result from default everts on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 manths after the reporting date unless there has been a significant increase in credt risk since
originatian, in which case, the loss allowance is measured based on the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Refer to Note 2.7
for more details.

f) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the financial asset and financial iability and the Company intends to
settle the financial asset and financial liability on a net basis.

gl Statement of cash flows

Staternent of cash fiows has been prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash in banks,

Far the purpose of the cash fiow statement, adjustmants for mat profit from financing activitas are non-Cash
iterns which include the effects of foreign exchange results, fair value hedge basis adjustmerts,
amortisation of debt issued and other borrowing wsing the effective interest rate methed and FWO valuation.

The maovement in the Deferrad fan assels and Tabiiies s included in the ine item Othars while the
mavement in the income tax receivable/{payable) is included in the line items Decreasadincraase) in other
aperaling assals and Increase in operaling labiliies. Both these Ine tems are presented under Net cash
flows fromAssed in operaling activities,

h) Taxation

Current tax asgets and labilities for the current and prior years are measured as the amount expacted to
be recovened from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary difference between the carrying
amaunts in the staterment of financial position and the tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recagnised to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temparary difference can be ublised

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amaunt are thase that are enacted or substantively enacted
as of the statermnent of financial position date,

24 Operating segment

The Company has organised its business activities based on its products and senvices. As the Company
only engages in one operaling segment of financing activily, the gross and net assets and profitioss before
taxation as presented in the face of the financial statements are related to the same segment. The majonty
of the debt is issued to Japanese investors. All loan payables, loan receivables and denvalives, except for
dervalives embedded in some of the medium term notes, are transacted with Momura Group.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

256 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The accounting policies and estimates are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the adoption of IFRS 9, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, for the
first time, The Company ded not early adopt any of IFRS 8 in previous perads, IFRS @ introduces new
requirements on how an entity should classfy and measure financial assets, requires changes to the
reporting of ‘own credit” with respect to issued debt liabilities that are designated at fair value and
replaces the rules for impairment of financial assets. The standard alsa reguires entities to provide users
of financial statements with more informiative and relevant disclosures. Flease refer to Mote 2.7 for the
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In May 2014, the |ASE issued IFRS 15 Revenus from Condracts with Customers, which specifies how
and when revenue i recognised, but does not impact income recognition related to financial
irstruments in scope of IFRS 9AAS 39. In Apnl 2018, the |ASE issued clarfications to the standard,
clarifying some requirements and providing addiional transitional relief for companies that are
implementing the new standard This standard is endorsed by EU and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with eary adoption possible. Based on assessment made, this
new standard does not have a material impact on the Company's financial position and performance.

In January 2018, the 1ASE issued IFRS 16 Leasas, which specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize,
measune present and disclose keazes. This standard is endorsed by EL and effective for annual peniods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, Based on assessment made, this new standard does not have a
miaterial impact on the Company’s financial position and performance,

26 Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of autharization of these firancial statements, the following new standards and amendments
e ihe existing standards and interpretations which are likely 1o be applicable to the Company have
been issued by the IASE but not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2019,

Amendments to IAS 1 and |AS B: Definition of Material

1858 issued 'Definition of Matenal (Amendments to |AS 1 and 1AS 8)' to clarify the definition of 'matenal’
and to align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards themselves. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with early adoption
possible. The amendments are not endorsed by EL yet.

Based on assessment made, these amendments do not have a material impact on the Comparny’s
financial position and performance.

IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 clanifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation is to be applied
to the determination of taxabie profit (tax loss), tax bases, wnused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under 1AS 12 IFRIC 23 is effective for
annual reporing periods beginning an or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption possible. The
Comparry does not expect a matenal impact an the Compary's financial position and perfarmance,

27 IFRS 9 Transition Impact Analysis

The adoption of IFRS & has resulted in changes in accounting policies for classification and
rmeasurement of inancial instruments and impairment of financial assets.

The purpose of this section is to describe the key aspects of the changes following the adoption of IFRS
9 with regards to classification and measurement and impairment. This section provides a movemnent
analysis from 1AS 38 reported numibers as includead inthe annual fimancial statements for the vear endad
31 March 2018 to IFRS 5 numbers as adopied from 1 April 2018,

IFRS & does not require the restatement of comparative-period financial statements for the initial
application of the classification and measurement requiremenis of IFRS 9 but requires additional
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

disclosures on transition to IFRS 9 as required under IFRS 7, Financial Instrumeants; Disclosuras. As
parmitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Company elected not to restate comparative
figures, Consequeritly, the comparative inffarmation for priof periods 15 reported under 1AS 39 and not
comparable to the information presented for the current penod. Any adjustments ta the carrying amount
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the date of transition wefe recognised in the apening
retained earmings and reserves as of 1 Apnl 2018,

Classification and measurement

To determine their classification and measwement categery, the new standard reguires all assets,
except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity's
business madel for managing the assets and the instruments' confractual cash flow characteristics. The
142 39 measurement categories of financial assets have been replaced by: fair value through profit or
loss, fair value throwugh other comprehensive income and amorised cost. IFRS 9 also allows entities to
continue to irrevocably designate instruments that qualify for amortised cost or fair value throwgh other
comprehensive income instruments as fair value through profit or loss, if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measurng assets or kabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. Equity
instruments that are not held for trading may be irevotably designated as fair value through other
comprehensive income, with no subsequent reclassification of gains or losses to the income statement.

The accourting of financial liabilities remains largely the same as the requirements of |AS 39, except
for the treatment of gains and losses arising from the Company's own credit risk relating to liabilities

designated at fair value through profit or less. Such movements in own credit risk are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to the income statement

Business model.
There are three business models identified under IFRS 9 for financial assets.
— Hold to Caollect - Financial assets held with the objective to collect contractiial cash flows.

= Haold ta Cellect and Sell - Financial assels held with the objective of both cellecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

= Cither - Financial assets held with trading intent or that do not meet the “Hald to Collect” and “Hold to
Callect and Sell” qualifying criteria

The Company determines its business maodel at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective. Factors considered by the Company in determining
the business model for a group of assets include how the cash flows from these assets were collected,
how risks are assessed and managed, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel and the frequency, value and timing of sales.

The Company manages a porifolio of financial assets through a Hold to Collect business model where
all of the following criteria are met:

- The porifolio is not managed through a held for trading or fair value management business moded;

- The portfolio of financial assets s managed to realise cash flows sclely through collecting contractual
payments aver the lfe of the financal assets rather than managing the overall returm on the portfolio by
both halding and selling financial assets; and

- Ary sales of financial assets are expected to be infrequent or insignificant.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI):

To meet the Hold to Collect business madel, the partfolio of financial assets are to be held by the
Caompany with the strategy of collecting cash flows from the financial assets specified by contractual

112/223



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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terms of the instrument. A financial asset can only be measured at amortised cost where the contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ane solely payments of principal and interest.

Principal for purpose of the SPPI test is defined as the fair value of the debt instrument at initial
recognition and therefore is determined based on a comparnson of cantraciual cash flows 1o the amaunt
actually invested. It 5 not necessarily the contractual par amount of the debt instrument

The most significant elements of interest within a basic lending arrangement are that it is consderation
for the time value of maney and credit risk. Interest may also include a profit margin

Einzncial assets,

Based on analysed business models and the confractual terms of financial assets to dentify if they
meet the SPP| test, there was no change from |AS 39 1o IFRS & for the classification of financial assels.

- Loans and advances o affiiales measwed at amortised cost under |AS 38 are classified as Hold to
Collect and measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

- Demvative financial assets measwed at “Fair value through profit or loss" under |AS 38 remains in this
category under IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities includes derivatves at fair value through profit or loss and other financial Habilities
that are not held for trading and have been designated by management upon intial recognition or upon
adoption of IFRS 8 to be measured at fair value through prafit or loss. Management designates an
instrurnert at fair value through profit of loss upan initial recognition when the designation eliminates,
or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatmert that would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or liabilfies or recognizing gains or lkesses on them on a differerd basis

Upon adoeption of IFRS & the Company extended the population of financial liabilities which it designates.
at fair value through prafit or loss in order to reduce an accounting mismatch that would othenwise anse
fram the different measurement basis for notes issued and the related hedging dervatives that caused
fluctuations in profit or loss. Management designates such instruments at fair value through profit or
less to mitigate the accounting mismatch caused by the profit or loss recognition timing difference
between notes isgued and the related hedging derivative.

Upon adoption of IFRS 9;

= Certain medium term notes of JEY 468 347 million under Debi issued and other borowing have been
reclassified to Financia! iabilifies designaled at fair value through profit or loss. These consist of noles
measured at amortised cost while one-to-ocne hedge derivatives are measured at fair value and certain
notes for which the embedded derivatives were bifurcated The impact on equity of designating these
financial iabilittes at fair value through profit or oss is anincrease of JPY 6,224 million before tax.

- Medium term notes which were already under Financial iabilities designated at fair value through profit
o loss under 1AS 35 remains in this category under IFRS 3,

- Denvative financial fabilities classified at “Fair value through profit ar loss® under 1AS 39 remains in
this categary under IFRS 8. Certain embedded derivatives are no lenger bifurcated as the host contract
is designated at fair value through profit or loss,

Changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss with the exception of movements in fair value of
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss due to changes in the Company’s own credi risk.
Changes in own credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or logs such a8 notes
iz=ued is recognised in other comprehensive income (OCH) and are not recycled to the prafit or loss,
theraby eliminating volatility in profit or loss in relation to own credit adjustments ("OCA"). Refer to the
‘Impact on Equity’ note belaow for more details.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 establishes a new credit risk impairment model based on expected losses, The standard
replaces |AS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected loss approach, The Compary
is required to record an allowance for expected losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not
held at fair value through profit or loss, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts. The allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated with the probability of
default inthe next 12 months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
in which case, the allowance is based on the probability of default over the expected life of the
instrument.

Expected credit loszes should be determined uging all reasonable and supportable information which
is reasonably available at the Company's reporting date without undue cost or effort, including
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The
infermation used should reflect factors that are specific to the obligor, general economic conditions and
an assessment of bath the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the Company's
reporting date. Information that is available for financial reporting purposes is aways considered to be
available without undue cost or effort

The genaral ECL impairment model is used to measure expected credit losses against the majority of
financial instruments held by the Compary which are subject to impairment through the ECL impairment
model under IFRS 9.

Expected credi losses represent the difference between the cash flows that the Compary is ertitled to
receive in accordance with the contractual terms of the financial instrument and the cash flows that the
Company ultimately expects to receive based an following madel,

The measurement of expected credit losses under the BECL mmpaiment model reflects:

*  Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes,

+ The time value of money, and

+ Reascnable and supporable information that i available without undue cost or effort at the
reparting date about past events, current soncitions and farecasts of future econamic conditions,

Lifetime expected credit losses represent expectad credit losses that would result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument whereas 12 month expected credit
losses are the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represert the expected credit losses that
result from default events on a financial instrumeant that are possible within the 12 months after the

reporting date.

In erder to determine whether 12 month or [ifetime expected credt losses are used, each financial assat
and off-balance sheet financial instrument being individually or collectively assessed for impairment is
classified at each reporting date inte one of following three stages of credit quality deteriaration since
the financial asset was initially recognised.

« Stage 1 - Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition;

« Stage 2 = Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit qualty since inbial recogriion but wihich are not credit-mpaired, and

» Stage 3 = Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant detenoration in
credit qualty since initial recogrition ard which have become credit-impaired,
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A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is intially classified into stage 1
and is typically subsequently continuously monitared 1o determine whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred, at which paint the financial instrument is reclassified to stage 2, A determination
of whether a significant increase in credit risk has cocurred at each reporting date will primarily be
through a comparisan of Nomura Graup's internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument at
acquisition, origination or issuance and the intemal credit rating currently assigned to the financial
instrument at the reporting date. Afinancial instrument will be reclassified into stage 2 where the internal
credit rating has declined by mare than a specific number of notches (one to fowr) depending on the
level of rating assigned at initial recognition. If there is a further detericration in credit quality such that
the financial instrument becomes credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then reclassified into stage
3

Internal ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-term capability and certainty
of debt repayment (creditworthiness) in addition to the fundamental conditions (fundamentals) of a gven
obligor or facility. Internal ratings are reviewed regularly and on an ad-hoc basis, to ensure that the
creditworthiness of a given abligor will be duly and timely taken into account.

A ztage 3 financial asset can only be classified out of stage 3 and info stage 2 or eventually stage 1
when it no longer meets the definition of being credit-impaired, namely when it is o longer probable
that the Company will not be able to collect all principal and interest amounts due in accordance with
the original or medified contractual terms of the financial asset.

A financial asset s credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detnmental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since afigination or purchase namely
and it is no longer probable that the Comparry will be able to collect all principal and interest amourts
due inaccardance with the contractual terms of the financial asset. The Company considers a financial
instrument defaulted (which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired) when there is failure of
an obligar to make payments in full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly dsadvantagecus
medification to a confractual term compared with the existing obligation, bankruptcy filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of business of an abligor or
other similar situations. In addition, there is a rebuttable presumplion that regardless of the above
defintion, default is deemed to occur and a financial instrument is credt-impaired when the financial
instrument is 90 days or more past due.

A financial instrument will continue to be credit-impaired until the obligor cures the reasons for credit-
impairment or there hias been a sustained cbeervable pericd of repayment performance an the financial
instrument. Determination of what constitutes a sustained pericd of repayment performance by the
obligor depends on the nature of the financial instrument but will typically be for a period of 6 months or
more,

The allowance for expected credit losses recogrised against stage 1 financial assels is determined
uging 12 month expected credit losses. Corwersely, the allowance against stage 2 or stage 3 financial
assets is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Credit-impaired financial instruments individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when
further cash flows are deemed uncallectible and when all commercially reasonable means of recovering
outstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on
factors such as the occurrence af significant changes in the abligor's hnancial posibion such that the
obligor can na longer pay the abligation, of that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient 1o pay
amaunts due.

&write off of a financial instrument such as a loan, recenable or debt security reduces the gross carmying
amaunt of the financial instrument. Wiite-offs are initially recognised against any existing allowance for
expected credit losses and can relate to a financial instrument in its entirety or to a partion of it.

Recoveries are recognised as a reduction of the provision for expected credit losses recognised through
eamings during the reporting period.
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For stage 1 and stage 2 financial instruments, interest income is recognised during the reporting period
at an amount determined by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carmying amourt of the
financial instrurmert,

For stage 3 financial assels, interest income is applied by applying the effective interest rate ("EIR") to
net carrying amount of the financial asset namely the gross camying amaunt less the allowance for
expected credt losses

egsureme g ted credit losses:

The measwement of expected credit losses through the general ECL impaiment model is typically
determined within the Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on
the relevant staging of the financial instrument. A loss rate model measures expected credit losses for
an individual or portfolio of similar financial instruments through development of loes rates calculated
through an estimate of the probability of default (*FD") of the obligor and loss given default ("LGD")
which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor at default (*“CEAD"). CEAD represents
the expected amourt of credit exposure (i.e amount owed to the Compary) at the point that the financial
instrument defaults.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument and by internal Momura credit rating applied
to the financial irstrument FPD inputs used by the Compary are sourced from industry data and
validated based on historical experence. PD inputs are prepared by referring to S&F's historic rating
migration data and PD is calculated over the next 12 months for stage 1 financial instruments and over
the entire lifetime far stage 2 and 3 instrumerts.

Forward-looking information is incarporated into the PD inputs by ferecasting economic scenarios and
adjusting the base case inpuls far at least one optimistc and pessimistic scenarno,

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based on historical expenience of loss
recovery rates for similar financial instruments and ather relevart industry data. LGD inputs are adusted
to reflect the impact of collateral and integral credit enhancements.

For revolving and non-revelving loan commitments, the relevant absolute measure of CEAD represents
an estimate of the total amount of the facility which will be drawn by the obligor by the time of default
This therefore includes any portion of the facility currently funded and an additional adjustment based
on a corversion factor to estimate of further amounts which may be drawn.

Cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancements that are integral to contractual
terms of the financial instrument and not recognised separately by the Company are included in the
mieasurement of expected credit losses,

The expected credit loss provision determined in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 1 Apnil 2018 is JPY 185
millicn before tax.
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IAS 39 carrying IFRS 9 carrying
amount as at 31 Remeasurements amount as at 1
March 2018 April 2018
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
MNon-Current
Impairment allowance for
loans and advances to
affiliates per |AS 39/credit
risk provisicn under IFRS & - {110) {1109
Total non-current - (110} {110)
Current
Impairment allowance for
loans and advances fo
affiliates per |AS 39/ credit
risk provisicn under IFRS 9 - (54) (54)
Unzettled loan commitments {11) {11}
Total current - {75) {75)
Total credit risk provision - (185) {185)

Impact on equity

The Company records an adjustment to its opening April 1, 2018 retained earnings, to reflect the
application of the new requirements of IFRS 9 Impairment and Classification and Measurement at the
adoption date and does not restate comparative periods.

The IFRS 9 transition amount increases shareholder's equity by JPY 4,530 million after tax.

The impact of fair value changes aftributable to the Company's own credit sk on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, which is recagnised in own creddt reserve, is JPY 3,332
million after tax. This includes the fallowing

+ A reclassfication within shareholder's equity, from retained earnings to own credit resene for
unrealized own credit resenves onnotes issued that were designated at fair value through profit
or loss under 1AS 38 and there is no change in their classification under IFRS 5,

= Nobes newly designated at fair value through profit or loss upon adoption of IFRS 9 where the
change in valuation relating to own credit determined on adoplion of IFRS 9 s recognised
through other comprehensive income in the own oredit reserse.
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The impact of transtion la IFRS © on reserves and retained earnings is as follows:

Reserves and
retained earnings
Millions of JFY
Owm credit reserve:
Closing balance under IAS 39 (31 March 2018} -
Impact of recognising own credit risk on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss in own credit reserve 4442
Deferred tax in relation to above {1,110
Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 April 2018) 3,332
Retained eamings:
Closing balance under IAS 38 (31 March 2018) 10,507

Reciassificafion adiustmants in ralalion to IFRS @

Impact of recogrising own credit risk on financial

liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss in own credst reserve {1,063)
Remeazwement impact of reclassifying liabilities

held at amortised cost to financial liabilities at fair

value designated through profit or loss 2845
Recognition of expected credit loss (185)
Deferred tax in relation to abave 359

Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 April 2018) 11,705
Total change in equity due to adopting IFRS 8 4,530

3. Interest income and expense

Far the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JFPY Millions of JPY
Interest and similar income
Loans ard advances to affiliates (Mote 27) 28,830 28,573
Cash collateral (Note 16) - £
28838 28,575
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JBY Millions af JPY
Interest and similar expense
Debt issued and other borrowing (312} (2877)
Cash collateral received (Mote 21) (105 (18)
Borrowing from affiliates (Mote 27) {19,107} {10 583)
Cthers {3 {2)
{19.531) 113, 480)

For tybrid financial liabdities where an embedded dervative is separated and the associated host =
determined (Refer to Note 2.3 for details), the derivative is recorded at its inflzal fair value and the residual
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is recogrised as a host cantract under Debt fssuad and ofher borrowing and accounted for at amortised
cost, Profit ar loss arsing from such embedded dervatve at intial recagnition & defermed and amorised
over the peried of such host cantract and may be recognised as income under Inlerast and simiar expense.
This amaunt includead in Inferast and smiar expense was JPY 2,723 million for the year ended 31 March
201 8. These instruments have been reclassihed 1o Financial kabililies designated af far value trough profit
o jass upon adoption of IFRS 9

In addition, changes in market conditions of interest, such as interest rate gap between bormowing rate and
lending rate where currencies are different, contribute to the movemeant in et inferast incame.

4. Fee and commission expense

For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JEY Millizns af JPY
Guarantee fee paid (Mote 27) {B04) {747)
(804} {747}

8. Expected Credit Loss

The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk and loss allowances of financial
instruments subject to impairment as of the reporting date. Certain off-balance sheet instruments which
expose the Company to a risk of loss due to default by the parties underlying these contracts are also

disclosed
As of March 2019
Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Millions of JBY Millions of JEY
Cash and cash equivalents 79 -
Cither debtors 2 296 567 282
Cash collateral placed (Mote 18) 1601885 -
Total 2 466 532 282
As of March 2018
Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Milligns of JFY Millions of JFY
Cash and cash equivalents 422
Other debtors 2,185,908
Cash collateral placed (Mate 18) 127,712 -
Total 2314.042 -
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The following table contains an analysis of the maximum credt risk expesure from financial assets not
subject to impairment.

As of
March 2019 March 2018
Carrying value Carrying value
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Dervative financial assets (Mate 14) 124 996 150,353
Cash collateral received (Note 21) (1.153) (1.937)
Taotal 123,843 148,416

Below table represents the credit risk exposure of loans by internal credit ratings and period end stage
classification. Internal rating categories are split as follows:

1) 7 grades in high credit guality category; from AAA to A-

2) 3 grades in good credit quality category, from: BBE8+ to BEB-

3) 3 grades in speculative credit quality category; from BB+ to BE-

4) 3 grades in highly speculative credt quality category; from B+ to B-
3) 1 grade in substantial credit risk quality categary: CCC

€) 3 grades in default grade category, from CC to D

Internal credit ratings are assigned taking into consideration the effects of economic fluctuations, to
assess creditworthiness of an obligor in one year or longer from the mid to long-term perspective. In
particular, internal credit ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-term
capability and certainty of debt repayment in addition o the fundamental conditions of a given obligor

of facility,
As of March 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Milliores of Milliors Millians Milliens of
JEY af JPY of JPY JPY
Internal Credit Rating
AAA | BBE- 2 296 567 ; . 2 206 567
BB+ /OCC - - - -
CCiD - - - -
Gross camying ameunt 2,296,567 . - 2,296 567
Loss allowance (282) - - (282)
Carrying amount 2,206,285 - - 2,206,285
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table explains the changes in loss allowance for the Compamy's financial instruments
batween the beginnng and the end of the period:

Loans and
advanced to Loan
affiliates commitments
Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Millions of
Millicns of JEY Millions of JFY JPY

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2018 174 1 185

Trarefers to stage 1 - - -
Trarsfers to stage 2 - ; B,
Trarsfers to stage 3 - - -
Financial assets derecognised

during period {54} (11} {75}

Mew financial assets onginated

or purchasad g2 30 122

Wite offs - . -

Changes in modelrisk

parameters 45 - 46
4 4

Foreign exchange adjustrments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2019 252 30 282

1) Beginning balances for 31 March 2019 movement bables are adpsted beginning balances due to initial application of IFRS
]

2 The Company did not have any financial assels or off-balance shest financial instruments classified as Stage 2 or Stage 3
during the reporing period.

B. Met trading income

For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JBY Millions af JBY
Met trading income an derivative financial
instruments 2772 23,581
Met foreign exchange gains 5,072 912
33793 24 473

The Comparny manages the rigks ansing from fluctuations in foreign currency exchanges and interest rates
with the use of dervative instruments. The gains and losses on derivatives, which are held for risk
management purposes to offset these fluctuations are included in Net frading incomea.

For hybrid irstruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the
gains and losses on hedging derivatives are offset by the gains and losses on embedded dervatives. For
the instruments which are not bifurcated, the gains and losses on hedging dervatives may cause fluctuation
in the recognition of gains and losses in Net trading income.

The vast majority of the increase in Nel lrading incame for the year ended 31 March 2019 compared to
the year ended 31 March 2018 is resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to the financial
liakilties designated at fair value through profit or loss, This increase is offset by a corespoanding
increase in the Nal ioss on financial abiities designatad at fair vaiue hrough profit or loss (Mate 7).

Risk management, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Company's dealing with financial
instruments, is disclosed in MNote 23,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Netloss on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 2019 March 2018
Millions of JEY Millions af JEY
Met loss on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss {34,073 {26,321)
{34,073) {26.321)

Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs associated
with the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loge are recognised under Net loss
on financial liabiities designated at fair value through profit or loss, except for the curmency translation
effect which is included in Net trading income (Maote &),

With the application of IFRS % the Company recognises fair value changes attributable to the
Company's own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in other
comprehansive income, Unrealised own credit amounts existed as of the adoption date of IFRS 9 have
been reclassfied from retained earnings to other comprehensive income after tax on 1 Apnl 2018,
Unrealised own credit amaunts will be reclassified directly to retained earnings after tax when realized
in future peneds, without reclassification to the ingome statement

For the previous periods, the impact of fair value changes attributable to own credit risk is included
under Neat loss on financial abilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (for the year ended 31
March 2018 JPY 8 261 mallion loss). For the current periad, due to the adopticn of IFRS 9 as at 1 April
2018, the realized own credit amounts are recorded under Refained eamings as part of Other
comprehensive ncome as JPY 43 million gain after tax and the unrealized own credit amaurts are
recorded under Resarvas as part of Other compraheansive income as JFY 5,282 milkon gain after tax
for the year ended 31 March 2019

This increase in Net loss an financial liabiifies designaled af fair value through profif o loss is largely

offset by an increase in Net trading income (Note 6) resulting from the hedging dervatives associated
to the financial hakilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

8. Other operating gainf{loss)

For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JPY Milligns of JBY
Redemnption gains/(losses) - (137)
Others - 2
- {135)
9. Salaries and social charges
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Milligns of JPY Milligns of JFY
Salaries (102} {88
Pension premium (14) (10)
Social charges and welfare (17} {11}
(133} {110)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
10. Number of employees
The Company had thiteen (13) employees working in the Metherlands as of 31 March 2019 (2018: 11)

Six (6) of the theteen employees were working part time as of 31 March 2019 (2018 8).

11. General and administrative expenses

For the year ended _
March 2018 March 2018

Millions of JEY Millions of JBY

Advance pricing arrangement
adjustrert (Mote 27) (4, 285) (7.555)
Sub-contractor fees (Motes 28) (475) {526)
Taxes other than income tax (1,006} (1.048)
Frofessional fees (B7) {80)
Administrative (Note 27) (62) (77
Cthers {2) {5)
(5.918) (9.332)

Advance pricing arrangement

The Company had a unilateral advance pricing agreement (the “Unilateral APA™) in place for the
avoidance of double taxation in the Metherlands and in Japan which was effective until 31 March 2018
On 28 Seplember 2018, MEF filed a request to Dutch tax authorities for the renewal of Unilateral APA
for the period starting from 1 April 2018 and ending 31 March 2022, Dutch tax authorities approved the
renewal request on 5 June 2018, For the year ended 31 March 2018, NHI and the Comparny agreed to
settle the adjustment in line with the terms of the request for renewal application. Consequently, for the
year ended 31 March 2019 JPY 4,286 million (31 March 2018; JPY 7,586 million) adjustrment amouwnt
payable to NHI 15 included in the abave account line itern advance pricing arrangement adjustment.

12. Taxation

The components of the taxation expense for the For the year ended
years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018
are as follows:
March 2019 March 2018
Milliors of JEY Millians of JEY
Current tax:
Current income tax {474) (450)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax
of prior years 2
Deferred tax:
Effect of change in income tax rate (458 -
Relating to termporary differences (24) (279)
Taxation expense {956) (T728)
For the year ended
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Profit before tax

At Dutch statutory income tax rate of 25%
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of
priar years

Effect of change in income tax rate

Effect of permanent difference between taxable
income and accounting profit

Taxation expense

March 2019 March 2018

Millions of JBY Millicns of JEY
2076 2823

(519 (731)

2] -

(450) -

15 2

(955) [7.25)

oOoOooodn

The nominal tax rate for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019 is 25% (2018: 25%) while the effective tax
rate is 24.08% (2018: 24.94%). The income tax rate will be reduced to 20.5% in 2021. The impact of this
change is included above in Effect of change in income tax rate.

The movements in the income tax receivable and deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

For the year ended
March 2019 March 2018

Millions of JPY Milligns of JEY
income tax {payable)ireceivable
Beginning balance 12 41
Payment 428 389
Charged to income [478) {450)
Other movements (30) 32
Ending balance (E5) 12
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Beginning balance 283 3,20
Deferred tax attributable to increase in own
credit risk (1,114} -
IFRS 2 adjustment attnbutable to own credit nsk (1.110) -
IFRS 2 beginning balance adjustment other than
own credit reserve (359)
Effect of change in income tax rate (458) -
Decrease related to temporary differences (24) {279)
Ending balance {172) 2931

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts in the staternent of financial position and the tax base Deferred taxes occur due to the
differences in tax base measurement and recognition timing of taxable income. The majority of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Company pertain to the valuation of the derivative financial
instruments and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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The componerts of the deferred tax recognized inthe statement of financial position for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 31 March 2018 are as fallows!

For the r ended

March 2019 March 2018
Millions af JPY Milliore of JFY
Deferred tax attributable to own credit risk (2,224) -
Valuation of financial instruments 2442 2931
Los= allowances for financial instruments GG -
Effect of income tax rate change {4585) -
{172) 2931
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14. Derivative financial instruments!?

Pasitive fair values

Fareign exchange related derivatives
Interest rate dervatives

Equity dervatives

Commodity derivatives

Credit derivatives

Megative fair values

Foreign exchange related derivatives
Interest rate dervatives

Equity dervatives

Commodity derivatives

Credit derivatives

- As of
March 2018 March 2018
Milliors of JFY Millicns of JEY
22 410 2 BBE
53017 65,455
3,611 34,308
15,213 2313
1,845 4 505
124 Go5 150,353
a0, 738 50,437
90,857 61,340
21,21 34,385
1,662 748
2833 4 5593
197 259 151,473

oOoOooodn

Apbove figures in tables consist of current and non-current derivative financial assets and derivative
firancial liabilities.

As of
March 2019 March 2018
Milliors of JEY Millicns of JEY
Motional amourts
Fareign exchange related derivatives 908 502 854 144
Interest rate derivatives 1,384,985 1,563,832
Equity derivatives 544 973 585 497
Commadity derivatives 30,100 48,100
Credit derivatives 220 365 327,350
3,089 015 3,388 923

All the above figures in tables include bfrcated embedded derivatives. Each derivative classification
includes derivatives referencing multiple risk components. For example, interest rate contracts include
compilex derivatives referencing interest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk

All foreign exchange related derivatives and other derivatives mentioned above, except for bifurcated
embedded derivatives, are transacted with MNomura Group

The Compary uses dervatives for hedging purposes inthe management of its structured notes portfolio
This enables the Company to mitigate the market nsk and interest rate risk ansing from its assets and
liabilities.

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuation adjustments are taken into
account. The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minmal as the Company exchanges cash
collateral (Motes 16 and 21).

1) Esch derivabive classification includes derivalives referencing multiple risk compenents. For sxample, inberest rate contracts
include comglex derivatives referencing inberest rate risk as well 85 foreign exchange risk,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Cash and cash equivalents
The balance only comprizes of cash in banks which is unrestricted for disposal.

16, Other assets

As of
March 2018 March 2018
Milliorns of JPY Millions af JFY
Cash collateral (MNotes 22 and 26) 169, 185 127,712
Cthers 3,510 2,928
172 BB 130 640

Under International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA") Credit Support Annex signed with related
parties, the Company posts Cash collateral to derivative counterparties related to dervative transactions.
Othars mainly include accrued interest income

17. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

The authorised share capdal consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Euro ("ELIR") 454 par value per share.
The esved and pad-up share capital comprises of 113,000 shares with EUR 454 par value par shane,

Deetails of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows.!

As of
March 2019 March 2018

Iszued and paid-up capital at hetorical cost

(JPY Miliars) 8402 8402
Issued and paid-up shares | Thousands) 113 113
Far value per share (EUR) 454 454
lssued shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY) 124.415 130.7472
lzzwed and paid-up capital (JPY Millions) 6,383 6,708

Differercs between issued and paid-up capital and issued ard paid-up capital at historical costis presented

under reserves as follows:
As of
March 2018 March 2018
Milligns af JEY Milliors of JFY
Iszued and paid-up capital at hestorical cost 8402 8402
Isswed and paid-up capital 5,383 5,708
Translation difference 2015 1,684

As required by Article 2:373 paragraph 5 of the Dutch Civil Code the Issusd and paidup capital account
is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the clasing rate from EUR
to JPY as of the statement of financial position date. The difference between the histarical cost and the
carrying amount of the issued and paid-up capital as of the staterment financial position date is recorded
under Currancy transistion resene account
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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18. Dividends paid

Mo dividend was declared or paid duning the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

19. Debt issued and other borrowing

a  Mon-current debst issued and other borrowing

For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JEY Milligns of JFY
Baginning balance!™ 525,609 852 6458
Issues 5013 307 400
Redemptiors (22,537} (137,199)
Reclassifications to current liabilities (68,276) (111,557)
Cther movements 254 (3,533)
Ending balance 439 064 817,754
b, Current debt issued and other barrowing
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance! " 27129 78,104
Issues 1,158 BT 432
Redemptions {34, 080) (170,427}
Reclassifications from non-currert liabilties G 276 111,557
Other movemens 253 (2 B39)
Ending balance 63 796 103,327

1) Beginning balances for 31 March 2019 movement lables are adjusted beginning balances due Lo inilisl application of IFRS
9

In the above tables, Other movements are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange results
and amertisation of debl issued and ofher borrowing using the EIR method
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20. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

a.  Men-current financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
Mareh 2018 March 2018
Millians of JPY Millions of JEY

Beginning balance!'! 879,272 516,744
Issues 303714 104,935
Redemptions (24,628) (9,572)
Reclassifications to

current liabilities (36,921) (97, 580)
Cither movements {44, 284) {2, 708)
Ending talance 1,057 153 511,808

b Current financial liabilities designated at far value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 2019 March 2018
Millicns of JOY Milliors of JEY

Beginning balance!'! 333,662 186,301
Issues 85181 45,245
Redemptions {247 284) (76,152)
Reclassifications from

non-current liabilities 56,91 97 590
Cther movements (10,442) 8,347
Ending balance 8,037 262,31

1) Beginning balances for 31 March 2019 movement tables are adjusted beginning balances due to initial application of IFRS
g

In the above tables, Other movemenis are mainly related to changes in unrealised revaluations, impact
of changes in own credit risk and effects of the foreign exchange results.

The impact of fair value changes attributable to the Company's own credit risk included in ather
comprehensive income on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is an
unrealised gain of JFY 6 463 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (JPY 8,261 million loss for the
financial year ending 31 March 2018), The cumulative valuation adjustments resulting from awn credit
is an unrealised gain of JPY 10,847 million as of 31 March 2018 (31 March 2018: JPY 1,063 rmullian
gain before IFRS 9 beginning balance adjustment), The Company calculates the own credit spreads
referring to secondany market prices. For the change in presertabion of changes in own credit risk
following the adoption of IFRS 8 on 1 April 2018 refer to Mote 7

The carrying amaunt is lower than the contractually due amount for the fnancial abies designafed

al fair value through profit or ioss is JPY 111,716 million as of 31 March 2019 (2018: the carrying amaount
is lower than the contractually due amaunt by JPY 130,688 million),
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21. Other liabilities

_ As of
March 2018 March 2018
Millions of JPY Millians af JPY
Cash collateral received (Motes 23 and 27) 1,153 1.937
Chhers 7687 3,726
8 840 5 663

Under 1ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related parties, the Company receives Cash collateral from
dervalive counterparties related to derivative transactions. Clhars mainly include accrued interest expense
and ather accrued expenses.

22. Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Company has JPY 409, 468 milkon unsettled loan commitments to Nomura Group companies as of 31
March 2015 (2018 JFY 146 540 million). Unsettled loan commitments are held off balance sheet, until the
paint at which they become drawn.

23. Risk management

The Compary’s fisk management activities invohse both the assessment and transfer of certain risks which
the Comparny must marage. The mest important types of risk are market risk, credit rsk, liquidity risk and
operatonal nsk. Market nisk includes currendy nisk, phce risk, and interest rate risk,

The Comparny's pimary objective is to act as a financing vehicle for Momura Group. Te this end, the
Company issues debt with returns linked to a variety of different indices including but not imited to
equities, interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and commedities. The Company actively manages the
resultant risk using derivative financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market
risk arising from such instruments. The Company transacis these derivative instruments solely with
other entities within Nomura Group.

The Company's financial instruments include loan advances, cash collateral deposited to or received
from other entities within Momwa Group, debt issued and other borrowing, financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives and borrowing from affiliates.

Group Risk ite:

Nomura Group has determined the maximum level and types of risk that it is willing to assume in pursuit
of its strategic objectives and business plan and has articulated this in its Risk Appetite Staterment. This
documert is jointly submitted by the Chief Risk Officer ("CRO") and the Chief Financial Officer (*CFCX)
to the Executive Management Board ("EMB") for approval,

The Risk Appetite Statemert provides an aggregated view of risk and includes capital adequacy and
balance sheet measures, liquidity risk, market and credit risk, operational risk, compliance risk and
medel risk, It is subject to regular manitaring and breach escalation as appropriate by the owner of the
relevant risk appetite statement

Nomura Group's Risk Appelite Statement is required to be reviewed annually by the EMB bt it is
reviewed on an ad-hot basis if necessary, and must specifically be reviewed following any sigrificant
changes in Momura Group's strategy. Risk appetite underpins all additional aspects of Momura Group's
risk management framework,

135/223



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Global Risk Management Structure

Upon delegation from the EMB, the Group Integrated Risk Managemert Committee ("GIRMC)
deliberates on or determines impartant matters conceming integrated risk management of MNomura
Group to assure the sound and effective management of its businesses, The GIRMC establishes
Momura Group's risk appetite and a framework of integrated risk management consistent with Mamura
Group's risk appetite. The GIRMC supervises Momua Group's risk management by establishing and
operating its risk management framework. The GIRMC reports the status of key risk management
issues and any other matters deemed necessary by the committee chairman te the Board of Director
and the EME.

In addition, the GIRMC, upon delegation from the EME, has established the Risk Management Policy,
describing Momura Group's overall risk management framework including the fundamental risk
managerment principles followed by Momura Group.

Upon delegation from the GIRMC, the GRMC deliberates on or determines, based on strategic risk
allecation and risk appetite determined by the GIRMC, important matters concerning market, credit,
operaticnal risk or reputational risk management of Momura Group in order to assure the scund and
effective management of Nomura Group's buginesses. The GRMC reports to the GIRMC the status of
discussions at its meetings and any other matters ag deemed necessary by the committee chairman.

The CRO is responsible for setting the overall strategy and direction of the Risk Managemernt Division.
The Risk Management Division comprises various departments or wnits in charge of risk management
established independently fram Momura Group's business units. The Risk Management Division is
responsible for establishing and operating risk management processes, establishing and enforcing risk
management policies and regulations, verifying the effectiveness of risk management methods,
gathering reports from Momura Group entities, reporting to Executive OfficersiSenior Managing
Directors and the GIRMC and others, as well as reporting to regulatory bodies and handling regulatory
applications concerming risk management methads and other items as necessary,

Policies and procedures are essential tools of governance used by the Risk Management Division. They
define principles, rules and standards, and the specific processes that must be adhered to in order to
effectively manage risk at Momura Group. The Risk Management Division has established a risk policy
framework to promate appropriate standards and consistency for risk policies and procedures and to
articulate the principles and procedures conducive to effective risk management. All risk management
policies and procedures are developed in ling with this policy framework and a defined process is
followed for any exceptions.

Development, consolidation, monitoring and reporting of risk management infermation { “risk MI™ ) are
fundamental to the appropriate management of risk. The aim of all risk Ml is to provide a basis for sound
decision making, action and escalation as required. The Risk Management Divigion and the Finance
Devision are responsible for producing regular risk M1, which reflects the position of Nomura Group
relative o stated risk appetite. Risk M1 includes information from across the risk classes defined in the
risk management framework and reflect the use of the various risk tools used to identify and assess
those risks. The Risk Management Division is responsible for implementing appropriate controls over
data integrity for risk M|

The Company's qualitative and quantitative risk management

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss ansing from fluctuations in values of financial assets and liabilities
(including off balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, prices of securities and others). Effective management of this risk requires the ability
to analyse a complex and evalving portfalio in a constantly changing global market environmert, idertify
problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action i1s taken in a timely manner, The Company seeks
to minimse the market risks by emenng into dervative agreements to economically hedge the

exposures in its loans and medium term notes. The maturity structure of the derivatives comrmesponds
with the maturity of the medium term notes being hedged.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

interest Rate and Equity Frioe Risk
It is the palicy of the Comparry to hedoe imerest rate and equity price expasures via the use of interest
rate derivatives, cross currency derivatives or equity swaps

The Campany raises funding with shor-term or long-term borrowings through the issuance of medium
term notes. The Campany funds the desired currencies at both ficed and floating rates of interest and
then uses both interest rate and currency dervatives to generate the desired interest rate hedge profile.
This will imralve matehing the coupon dates on bath the assets and liabilities where relevant.

Applying the above hiedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Company does not have a significant
interest rate exposure as of 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Currency Exposure

Currency exposures are comprised of the monetary assets and monetary liabilitiez of the Company that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the Company. All material net currency exposure
arising from activities of the Company is actively hedged using foreign exchange related derivatives
andfor currency derivatives.

It iz the policy of the Company not to trade currency exposure; therefore, all currency derivative
transactions are entered into with the intertion of hedging only.

Applying the above hedging pelicy on curfency exposure, the Comparny does not have a significant
currency exposure as of 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

Credit Risk

Credit risk managament

Credtt risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor's default, insclvency or administrative proceeding
which results in the abligor's failure to meet its cantraciual etligations in accardance with agreed terms.
This includes both on and aff-balance sheet exposures. It is also the risk of lass arising through a credit
valuation adjustment associated with deterioration in the creditworthiness of a counterparty.

The measurement, monitoring and management of credit risk at Nomura Group are governed by a set
of global policies and procedures. Credit Risk Management ("CRM"), a global function within the Risk
Management Division, is responsible for the implementation and maintenance of these policies and
procedures. Credit rizk is managed by CRM together with various global and regional risk committees.
This ensures transparency of material credit risks and compliance with established credit limits, the
approval of material extensions of credit and the escalation of risk concentrations to appropriate senior

management.

Cradit gualty of financial assets
The Company considered the credit rating of Nomura Group as the same credit rating received by MHI
from Standard & Poor's International LLE which is A- as of 31 March 2018

The Company's loans and derivative financial instruments are traded exclusively with Nomura Group.
As external credit rating of MHI is considered strong, the Company deems that credit sk is minimised.

Cracit Risk Mitigation Techrigues

As mentioned previously, the Company enters into ISDA master agreements or equivalent agreements
(called "Master Metting Agreements”) to mitigate its exposure to credit loss. The impact of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities which are subject to these agreements is not reflected in the
staternent of financial position.

Impaired financial 255615

The Company assesses on a forward-locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets. The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date as
described in Note 2.3 ) and Note 2.7 above.

All loans are transacted with Momura Group. Please see Mote 27 for the amount of impairment loss
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019 or prior period.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liguidity Risk

Liguiclity Risk Managemeri

Mamura Group defines liquidity risk as the risk of loss arsing from difficully in securing the necessary
funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to deterioration of Nomura
Group's creditworthiness or deterieration in market conditions. This risk could arse from Momura-
specific or market-wide events such as inability to access the secured or unsecured debt markets, a
detenioration in Nomura Group credit ratings, a failure o manage unplanned changes in funding
requirements, a failure to liquidate assefs quickly and with minimal loss in value, or changes in
regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different Momura group
enfites. Liquidity risk management policy is based cn liquidity riek appetite formulated by the EME.
MNomura Group's liquidity risk management, under market-wide stress and in addition, under Nomura
Group specific stress, seeks to ensure enough continuaus liquidity to meet all funding requirements and
unsecured debt obligations across one year and 30-day perieds respectively without raising funds
through unsecured funding or through the liguidation of assets.

The Nomura Group has in place a number of Liquidity Risk Management frameworks that enable
MNomura Group to achieve its primarny liquidity objective. These framewaorks include (1) Centralized
Control of Regidual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio; (2) Utilization of Unencumbered Assets
as Part of Liquidity Portfolio; (3) Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and
Maturities Commensurate with the Compesition of Assats; (4) Management of Credit Lines to Momura
Group Entities; (3) Implemertation of Liquidity Stress Tests; and (§) Contingency Funding Plan.

The EMB has the authority to make decisions concemning Nomura Group liquidity managermerit, The
CFOaf NHI has the aperational authority and responsibility over Momura Group's liquidity manage ment
based on decisions made by the EMB

The Company is fully integrated into Nomura Group's Liguidity Risk Management framewarks given its
primary role as the funding vehicle of Nomura Group.

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managed by
Global Treasury of Momura Group to avoid any concentration of funding by matunty and source. The
distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order to ensure
access o funds and to avoid a concentration of funding at any cne time or from any one source.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operational Risk

Momura Group defines operational sk (the "Operational Risk”) as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed intermal processes, people and systems or from external events. |t excludes
strategic risk (the risk of loss as a result of poor strategic business decisions), but includes the risk of
breach of legal and regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to Momura Group's reputation if
caused by an operatonal risk,

The Three Lines of Defence

MNomura Group adopts the industry standard “*Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operaticnal risk, comprising the following elements.

1) 1st Line of Defence: The buginess which owns and manages its risks

2) 2nd Line of Defence; The Operational Risk Management (“ORM") function, which defines and
co-ordinates the operational rigk, framework and its implementaticn provides challenge to the 1st Line
of Defence

3) 3rd Line of Defence: Internal Audit, who provide independant assurance

Operational Risk Managemeant Framework

An Cperational Risk Management Framework has been established in order to allow Nomura Group to
identify, assess, manage, monitor and report on operational risk. The GIRMC, with delegated autharity
from the EMB has formal oversight over the management of operational risk.

The ORM framework consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framework, 2) Products and Services and 3)
Outputs. The Company is fully integrated into Mamura Group's ORM framework.

Below are the measures taken to contral the main operational risks which farm Products and Services
in the ORM framework:

- Risk and Control Self- Assessment: This process is used to identify the inherert risks the business
faces, the key controls associated with those risks and relevant achions to mitigate the residual risks.

+ Scenano Analysis: This process is used to assess potentially high impact, low likelihood operational
risk events and where the process identifies the need to do so, agree actions to Improve conlrgls.

- Event Reporing: This process is used to idertify and report any event which resulted in or had the
patential to result in a loss of gain or other impact associated with inadequate or failed internal
plocesses, people and systams, or from external everts

- Key Risk Indicators: These are the metrics used to monitor the business’ exposure to aperational rnisks
and trigger appropriate responses as thresholds are breached.

Applying the abave measurements, the Company does not have a significant operational risk exposure
as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2018,

24. Fair Value

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Comparison of the carmying amounts and fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and current financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost including Borrowing fram affiiates fairy approximate their fair values, since they are shart-term in

nature. Below tables include comparison of the carmying amaunts and fair values of non-current loans
and advances to affiliates and non-current debt issued and other borrowing.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of March 2019

Carrying
amoaunt Fair valua
Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of J&EY JPY JPY
Loars and advances to affiliates 239,071 237,964 -
Debt issued and other boarrowing 430,064 382 706 -

As of March 218

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Milliors of  Milliors of
Millions af JFY JPY JPY
Loars and advances to affiliates 229 945 2013
Debt issued and other borrowing 917,758 851,352

For financial azsets camed at amorised cost which have a maturity of more than one year from the
statement of firancial position date, fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the
prevailing rates from the active markets. Credit risk and senionty of the relevant loans are taken into
consideration in determining the fair value of the loan.

For financial labilities carmed at amortised cost having a maturity of more than one year from the
staternert af financial position date, fair value is determined based on price quotations at the staterment
of financial position date, These guatations are based on technigques for which all inputs that have a
significant effect on the fair value are abservable etther directly or indirectly, as well as technigues which
use inpuls not based on ebsarvable market data,

Fair Value Hierarchy
The following tables presents information about the Company's financial assets and financial liabities

measured at fair value within the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis, based on the transparency of
inputs into the valuation techniques used by the Company to determine such fair values,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The following tables show a reconailiation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments
categorised within Level 3 between the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

peniod
March 2015
Financial iabilities
designated at fair
Deerivative Derivative value through
financial assels financial kabilities profit or loss
Millions of JPY Millions of JBY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance’ 52432 54,942 55,624
Total gainsi{lassas) in the income
statsment | 6,008 a7aa 5414
Mew Issues - - 140,182
Settlernents 1,011 (5,013) (19,430)
Transhers in 2,542 2543 58,144
Transfers out (34150 [5.697) [54.187)
Ending balance 58,662 61,623 185,737
Tetal unrealised gainstlosses)
for the peniod included in the
income staterment for instruments
held at the end of the reporing
period 16928 (16,791} 5412
March 2018
Financial labilities
designated at fair
Derivatie Derivative value through
financial assets  financial Kabilities profit or loss
Millions of JPY Millicns of JPY Millions of JBY
Beginning balance 43,742 a4,240 47,253
Total gainsi/{lessas) in the income
staternent ! 17.820 17.5e2 1,384
Mew lgsues . 8158
Settlernents {(3,508) :4 159} (2,203
Transfers in 6,814 12,245
Transfers out (4,14%) [d 69?'# (31,658)
Ending balance 50,724 51,308 35,232
Total unreaksed gains/{losses)
fior the penod included in the
incormne staterment for instruments
held at the end of the reporting
pericd 33,108 (32 534) 519

1) Bawlrlng balances for 31 Manch 2019 movement tables are adusied beginning balances due bo initial application of IFRS

2 Fnr assels, posithve balances represent gains, negative balances represent losses. For Babilties. positive balances represent
losses, negative balances represem gains.

Total gains and losses on financial derivatives included in the above table are included under Net frading
income in the income statement. Total gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss incleded in the above table are included under Net loss on financial liabilifies
daesignated at fair value through profit or loss in the income statement
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, there were no financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised at fair value under Level 1, Thus, no transfers ccourred between Level 1 and Level 2,

The Campany assumes that all transfers of financial instruments from ane level to ancther level within
the fair valug hierarchy occur at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period in which the
transfer takes place. Amounts reported above therefore represent the fair value of the financial
instruments at the beginning of each guarter within the relevant period when the transfer was made.

Valuation techniques by major class of financial instrument

Derivatives:

The Company has only overthe-courter ("OTC") derivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, which are wvalued using internal models using market transactions and other market
evidence whenaver possible, including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market
clearing fransactions, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasenable levels
of price trangparency. Valuation techmiques include simple discounted expected cash flow techniques,
Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo simulations. OTC denvatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy when all of the significant inputs can
be cormoborated to market evidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant uncbservable inputs such as correlation, long-
dated volatility, or ather unobservable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives
classified as Level 3 by the Company include exolic interest rate derivatives, exatic foreign exchange
derivatives, exotic equity dervatives, exotic dernatives including a combination of interest rate, farsign
exchange and equity risks and certain other transactions including long-dated or exotic credit derivatives

Valuation technigues may rely on parameters which are not observable in the market due to an absence
of equivalent, current, market frarsactions or obsarvable market data, These valuation technigues are
based on assumplions. As a result, the fair value calculated using these valuation technigues will
change if the underlying assumiptions change.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, a total of JPY 2 542 million of financial assets (2018: JPY 6,814
million) ard a total of JPY 8,643 million of financial liabilities (2018: Y 8,002 million) were transferred
inte Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprized primarily JPY 2577 millicn
of equity derivatives (2018: comprised primarily JPY 6,431 million of equity derivatives) which were
transferred into Level 3 because certain volatilities and correlations became unobservable or the
significance of unobservable parameters increased. On the financial liabilities side the transferred
amaourts comprised primarily JPY 7,510 million of equity dervatives (2018 comprised primarily JPY
6,431 million of equity derivatives) which were transfermed into Level 3 because certain volatilities and
correlations became uncbsenable or the gignificance of unobservable parameters increased.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, a total of JPY 3 419 million of financial assets (2018: JPY 4143
million) and a total of JPY 5,697 million of firancial liabilities (2018: Y 4,657 million) were transferred
outaf Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primnarily JPY 2 043 millian
of equity derivatives (2018: comprised primarily JPY 3040 milion of equity derivatives) which were
transferred out of Level 3 because cerain volatiities and corelations became observable orf the
significance of unobservable parameters decreased. On the financial liabilties side the transferred
amaunts comprised primarily JPY 3,742 rmillion of equity denvatives (2018: comprised primarily of JPY
3,040 million of equity derivatives) which were transferred out of Level 3 because certain volatiities and
correlations became observable or the significance of uncbservable parameters decreased.

Medigm-term notes,
The Company issues mediem-term notes which contains embedded featwes that alter the return to the
irvestor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a return that depends wpon some other

variables, such as anequity ar equity indax, commedity price, fargign exchange rate, credst rating of a third
party or a more complex interest rate (Le., an embedded dervative).
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The fair value of such structured notes is determined using a guoted market price in an active market for
the identical liability if available, and where not available, using a mixture of valuation technigues that wse
the quoted price of the identical labilty when traded as an asset, quoted prices for similar labities, simikar
liabilities when traded as an asset, or an internal model which combines dscourtad cash flow ("DCF)
valation techniques and aptien pricing moedels, depending on the nature of the embedded features within
the structured note. The significant valuation inputs used to estimate the fair value of the dabt instrument
component include yvield curves, prepayment rates, default of probabilities and loss severities,

Valuation processes

The Company is fully integrated into Momura Group's governance framework which mandates
determination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent
of the businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropriateness
of any fair value measurement of a financial instrument used within theze financial staterments including
those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

The furctions within Memura Group for either defining, implementing or mairtaining valuation policies
and procedures are as follows:

+ The Product Control Valuations Group ("PCVG") within Nomura's Finance Department has the
primary responsibility to determine and implement valuation policies and precedures in connection
with determination of fair value measurements. In particular, this group will ensure that valuation
policies are documented for each type of financial instrument. While it is the responsibility of market
rmakers and investrment professionals in Nomura Group's trading businesses to price our financial
instruments, the PCVG are respansible for independently verifying or validating these prices. In
the event of a difference in opinion or where the estimate of fair value requires judgement, the
valuation used within these financial statements is made by senior managers independert of the
trading businesses, This group reports to the Global Head of Product Control and ultimately to the
CFO of Nomura Group,

«  The Accounting Policy Groupwithin Momura's Finance Department defines the Group's accounting
policies and procedures, including those associated with determination of fair value. This group
reports to the Global Head of Accourting Palicy and ultimately to the CFO of Mamura Groug;, and

« The Global Model Validation Group (*MVG") within Momura's Risk Management Department
validates the appropriateness and consistency of pricing models used to determine fair value
measwements independently of those who design and build the models. The group reports to
the CRO.

Independant price verification processes

The key objective of the independent price verification processes within Momura Group is to verify the
apprapriateness of fair value measurements applied to all financial instruments within Momura Group.
In applying these contrel processes, observable inputs are used whenever possible and when
unabservable inputs are necassary, the processes seek to ensure the valuation technique and inputs
are appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied,

The independent price venficabon processes aim to venfy the fair value of all positions to external levels
on a regular basis. The process involves obtaining data swuch as frades, marks and prices from internal
and external sources and examining the impact of marking the internal positions at the external prices.
Margin disputes within the collateral pracess are also irvestigated to determine if there is any impact
on valuatons

Where third-party pricing information sourced from brokers, dealers and consensus pricing Senices is
used as part of the price verfication process, consideration is given as to whether that information
reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which transactions invohing identical or similar
financial instruments are currently executable. IF such transactions or prices are not available, the
financial instrument will generally be classified in Level 3.
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Where there is a lack of observable market information around the inputs used in a fair value
measuremernt, then the PCVG and the MVG will assess the reasonableness of inputs used, considering
available information including comparable products, surfaces, curves and past trades. Additional
valuation adjustments may be taken for the uncerainty in the inpuls used, such as correlation and
where appropnate trading desks may be asked to execute frades to evidence market levels.

Quantitative information regarding significant uncbservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information about the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
used for financial instruments classified as Level 3. These financial instruments also typically include
cbservable valuation inputs {i.e. Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not included in the table.

The following table shows valuation techniques and inputs wsed in the fair value measurements of Level 3
fimancial aszets and financial liabilities:

Fair value as of

March 2019
Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assets Liabilities technigue(s) inputs inputst’
Foreign exchange 10,639 11,215 DCFiOption  FX Volatilities[%) 1450 -15.13%
related derivatives Model
Intenest rate dervatives 43,056 42,574 DCFOption Interest rates 0.04-2.31%
Medal  FX Volatilities]] 10.6-15.17%
IR Volatilities{bp] 32 45-83 83
Correlations 025088
(-1.0ta1.0)
Equaty dervatives 4,663 7455 DCFOption Dividend yaeld 0,00 -6.61%
Medel  EQ Volatilites[%) BET-54 48%
Correlations L7091
(1.0t 1.0)
Credit derivatives 104 Ta DCF Credit Spreads 0.24-1.35%
Recovery Rates 35 -35%
Financial liakilities - 185,737 DCFOption Interest rates 0.04-2.31%
designated at fair value Model F¥ Volatilities[%] 11.5-15. 20%
through profit or loss IR Volatilties{bp] 32.45-60.90
Cortelations 0025-0.98
(1.0t 1.0)
Total 58,662 247,360
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Fair value as of

March 2018
Millions of JEY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable waluation
Assets Liabilities  technigque(s) inputs inputst
Foreign exchange 8853 & 883 DCFiOption  FX Volatilities[%) 14.52-15.54%
related derivatives Model
Intenest rate dervatves 46,005 46,670 DCFOptisn Iriberest rates 017-2.93%
Model  FX Volatilities[3%) 11.22-15 58%
IR Volatilifies[bp] 33.48-82.41
Correlations 0.25-0.88
(-1.0to 1.0}
Equity dervatives 5713 5T3 DCFOption Dividend yeedd 0.00-5.64%
Model  EQ Velatilities[%)] 7.231-5084%
Correlations 0.75-0.88
(-1.0to 1.0
Credit dervatives 33 33 OCF Credit Spreads 0.15-1.00%
Recovery Rates 35-35%
Financial liakilities - 35,232 DCFOption Interest rates 017-281%
designated at fair value Meodel  FX Volatilities[3] 11.22-15 54%
through profit or loss IR Vilatilfies[bp] 35 48-54.58
Correlations 025089
— (1.0t 1.0}
Total 80,724 96,540

(1) Range infarmation is provided in parceniages. cosficlents and represends the highest and lowest level significant
unobservable valualion input used to value thal type of Snancal nstrument. A wide dspersion in the range does nol
necessariy reflect imereased uncertainty of subjectivity in the valuation inpul and is fypically just a consequence of lhe
different characteristics of the Snancial instruments themsehes.

Saensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to general market sentiment, credt, interest rate, foreign exchange and
correlation sk, current values may continue to decrease if conditions detenorate further, Conversely,
should conditions improve; an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected, However,
management does not anticipate a significant impact in the net pesition of Level 3 firancial instruments

As the Company enters into derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in mediem term nates, the
increase of decrease inthe value of the Level 3 portfolio will not significantly impact its profits and losses.
Hedging derivative instruments offset the positions ansing from the dervatives which are embedded in
the debt instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs related to
these financial instruments.

For each class of financial instrument described in the above tables, changes in each of the significant
unabservable inputs and assumplions used by the Company will impact the fair value measuremeant of
the financial instrument. The sensitivity of these Level 3 fair value measurements to changes in
unabservable inputs and interrelationships between those inputs are described below:

Derivatives - Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a dervative, significant increases
(decreazes) inthe underlying of the derivative, such as interest rates or credit spreads in isolation or
significant decreases (increases) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value measurement. Where the Company is short the underlying rsk of a derivative, the impact of these
changes would have a comverse effect on the fair value measurements reported by the Company.
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Where the Company is long optionality, recovery rates or correlation, significant increases (decreases)
in velatiities, recavery rates or correlation will generally result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value
measurement, Where the Company is short optionality, recovery rates or correlation, the impact of
these changes would have a comverse effect on the fair value measurements,

Financial liabilities designalad at fair value through profit or loss — When financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss contain embedded features, embedded features altter the return to the
investor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a return that depends upon some
other variables, such as an equity or equity index, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating
of a third party or a more complex interest rate.

Given that the financial derivatives are held for risk management purposes to offset movement from such
fimancial liabiities designated at fair value through profit or loss, sensitivity of the fair value of the financal
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss to changes in unobservable inputs are expected to
be in the opposite direction of those of the dervatives.

There is no predictable interrelationship between significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 financial
instruments.

Given the Company is exposed to limited market risk, the sensitivity of unobzervable inputs to the profit
or loss and equity are negligible. Regarding the statement of financial position, when reasonably
pogsible atternative unobservable inputs are uged, the impact on fair value of Level 3 instruments is mot
significant compared to the total assets of the entity.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses generated from the use of valuation technigues with significant unobservable parameters
are deferred aver the life of the contract until paramelers bacome cbservable or whan the instrument is
derecognesed, Changes in fair value after inception are recognised in the profit or loss accownt. The total
fair value attributable to these financial instruments that is yet to be recognised in the profit or loss account
as of the statement of financial position date is JFY 640 million gain (2018: JPY §25 millicn gain). The
following table shows a reconciliation of movements in the day 1 gains and losses between the beginning

balances and the ending balances.
As of

March 2019 March 2018

Milions of JBY Millions of JBY
Beginning balance gain 625 1,284
Mew transactions . 95
Amounts recognised in profit of loss during the year 15 (T34)
Ending balance galn &40 625

25, Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a summary of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to the Master
Melting Agreements and similar agreements,
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As of March 2019
Milions of JPY
Related amounts not set off in
the statement of financial
position
Gross
amounts Amounts

Gross i!::;unts af aﬁ::; in prm::“

m‘:;l balance balance Financial Cash Net

assetelliabilities!” sheet sheet instruments®  cellateral®™  Amount
Derivative
financial assets &4 824 - &4 824 (63,841} (983) -
Loans and
advances to 277237 - 277237 - - 2TTAET
affiliates
Other assets 30,220 = 30,220 (27 536) - 2684
Total financial
assets aT2,281 - 3T2_.231 {91,377) (F83) 278,921
Dervative
financial 185,019 - 185,019 (91,377) (93,6842) -
liabibties
Total financial
liabilities 185,019 - 185,013 {91,377} !53.&*@] -
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As of March 2018
Millicns of JPY

Related amounts not set
aff in the statem ent of
financial position

Grass
ameunts Amounts
affset in presented
Gross am“r:.u:r of " e in the _ .
flcrl:agncial balance balance ) Financial Cash Net
assetsfliabilities™  S1oet sheat instruments®  collateral®™  Amount
Derivative
financial assets 67 382 - 67 382 {65,6409) (1,733
Loans and
advances o 202,647 - 202 647 - . 202,647
affiliates
Cither assets 18,220 - 18,220 {16,682) - 2528
Total financial 289,249 = 289,249 (82,241) {1,733) 205,175
assets
Derivative
financial 141,865 . 141,885 (B2,341)
liahilities {58,554)
Total financial
liabilities 141,895 - 141,895 (82,341) (59,554) -

1) The bifurcated embedded derivalives are éxcluded as they are nol in $cope of master netling and simiar agresments,
2}  Those represent amounts which are not permitted to be offsel on the face of the balance sheel bul which prosdde the

Company with the right of offset in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankrupley.
3 The cash collaberal received against the posilive mark (o merkel values of derivalives and the cash collateral pledged
fowards (he negative mark bo maket values of dervatives are reported under Ciher labiites and O ther o2seds respectively.

The Comparny entered into ISDA Master Agreements with all derivative counterparties which grant the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankrupicy. The
Company also entered into On Balance Sheet and Off Balance Sheet Master Nelting Agreements with
cne of the counterparties which grant the Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty
default, insolvency or bankrupicy. These armangements reduce credit rigk exposure relative to what the
credit exposure would be if the same counterparty were liable for their gross exposures on the same
underlying contracts.

Lsually, netting arrangements ane constituted by a master netting agreement which specifies the
oeneral terms of the agreement between the counterparties, including information on the basis of the
netting calculation, types of collateral, the definition of default and other termination events, the
calculation of damages (on default) and documentation required. The Master Metting Agreement
containg the terms and conditicns by which all (or as many as possible) relevant trangactions between
the counterparties are governed. Multiple individual transactions are subsumed under this general
master netting agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparties conduct their
relevant mutual business. Inaddition to the mitigation of credit risk, placing individual transactions under
a single master netting agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope also helps to
mitigate settiement risks associated with transacting in multiple jurisdictions or across multiple contracts.

26. Capital management policy
The objective of the Company's capial management policy is to ensure that the Company has an

appropriate level of capital, being issued capital and ssued medium term notes and barrowing from
affiliates.
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The Company reviews the appropriate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into consideration the financing needs and liquidity position of Nomura Graup.

Na changes were made in the abjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year

As of
March 2019 March 2018
Milliors of JPY Millions of JPY
Issued and paid-up capital 6,383 8,708
Share pramium 1,321 1.321
Currency translation reserve 2015 1,684
Totalissued capital 5723 9723
Debt issued and other borrawing 502,820 1,021,086
- Mon-current 435 064 917,789
- Current 63,756 103,327
Financial iabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss 1,275,180 774140
- Mon-current 1,087,153 511,809
- Curent 218,037 262 331
Borrowing from affiliates 575,681 494 758
- Mon-current - -
- Current 575 681 494, 798
Total issued capital, medium term notes and
borrowing from affiliates 2363, 414 2299747

27. Related parties

Same as disclosed in elsewhere of these financial statements, the Company had the following material
transactions with related parties during the period.

a. Transactions with the parent

i The Company entered into loan agreements with NHI and eamed interest income of JPY 8 GBS
million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: JPY 9 503 million) {Refer to Note 3). As of 31
March 2018, fotal cutstanding loan to MH| amounted o JPY 1,508,600 milion (2018: JPY
1,251,400 milion), The outstanding balance is unsecured The Comparry has JPY 205,900
rrlicn ursettied loan commiments to MHI as of 31 March 2008 (2018 Nil). JFY 21 million
impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019 on the lsars and
unsettied loan commitrments to MHI (2018 i),

i. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with MHI, a5 ane of the guarantors of the
Campany notes, whereby the Company has agreed to pay a fee (Refer to Note 4) based on
the average outstanding amount of the notes during the relevant calculation period. 2 797
rmillion quarantee fees were reponted under Fee and commission expeanss for the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018, JPY 739 mikion). As of 31 March 2019, the guarartee fee payabie to
MHI 15 JPY 797 milion (2018, JPY 739 millgn)

i, Inaccordance with the Unilateral ARPA in the Metherdands (Refer to Mote 11), the Company
agread to pay the adjustment amount resuiting from the ARPA to NHI. The adjustment amount
of JPY 4286 milion (2018 JPY 7596 mifion) was reported under General and
admirisirative expenszas. As of 31 March 2019, JFY 4 286 million is accrued under Other
fabilities (2018. JPY 58 million) in relation to the APA,

w. The Company incurmed service fee of JPY 444 million for MHI information technology
infrastructure support and other services for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2018: JPY 437
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million). This expense is reported under General and administrative expenses in the income
statemeant, As of 31 March 2019, the service fee payable to NHI is JPY 209 million (2018
JPY 238 million),

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2018, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from Momura
Graup. Mo remuneration ta the managing direciors was chargeable to the Company for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2015,

¢, Transactions with other related parties

i. The Compary ertered into loan agreements with other related parties and earned interest
incorme of JFY 20,151 milkion for the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 2018: JPY 15,070
millicn) (Refer to Mote 3). As of 31 March 2019, total outstanding loan to other related parties
amounted to JPY 783 484 milion (2018 JPY 831,632 milicn). All cutstanding balances are
unsacured The Compary has JPY 203 568 million unsettied loan commitrments to other related
parties as of 31 March 2019 (2018: JPY 148 540 millien). JPY 76 millon impairment lees has
been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019 on the loans and unsettied commitmerts
to other related parties (2018 Mil)

il. The Comparny enfered into borrowing agreements with other related parties and incurred
irerest expense (Refer to Mate 3), Al borrowings from affiliates are from other related parties,

iii. The Compary entered into derivative transactions with other related parties under ISDA Master
Agreements. As of 31 March 2019, derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilites
with cther related parties amounted to JEY 64 824 million and JPY 185 019 million, respectively
(31 March 2018: derivative financial assets - JPY 67 382 million and derivative financial
lizbilities - JPY 141,895 million). Under 1ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related parties,
the Company posts and receives cash coliateral related to denvative transactions (Refer to note
16 and 21).

iv. As of 31 March 2019, tolal oulstanding balance of debt isswed by the Comparry held within
MNamura Group for iguidity or market making purposes amaunted to JFY 16,525 milkon (2018
JPY 14 674 million) of which JPY 3,351 million classified under Dabl issusd and other i
(201&: JPY 10,854 million) and JPY 13,134 million under Financial fatiites designated at fair
valuea through profif or loss (2018: JPY 3,780 million).

¥, The Compary ertered into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in Mormura Graup,
as guarantors of the Comparny noles, whereby it has agreed to pay a fee (Refer ta MNote 4)
based on the average outstanding amount of the notes duning the relevant calculation penod
JPY T million guarantee fees were charged to Fee and cammission ex pense for the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018 JPY 8 million). As of 31 March 2018, the guarantee fee payable ta the
cther related party is JPY 7 million (2018: JPY 8 millian).

vi. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company incurred service fees amounting to JPY 91
million to certain related parties for provision of operational support which are reported under
Genaral and sominisiralive axpanses in the income statement (2018: JEY 123 mallion).

Wii.

The Company entered into a dealer agreement with other related party who underwrites nates
issued by the Company including the notes classified under Financial Kabilibies designated at
fair value through profit or koss. The Company economically hedges structured nature of the
nates by entering derivative transacticns with anather other related party. Gain of loss arising
from the notes was recognised under Nel (oss on financial fabilities designated al fair valle
through profit o loss while gain or loss ansing from derivative ransactions was recognised
urdar Net tracling incoma.

vili. The Company placesireceives Cash collateral tefrom dervative counterparties related to
derivative transactions and incurred interest (Refer to Mote 16 and Mate 21),
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28, Events after the reporting period

As of the date of this report, there have been no events subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2019
which require adjustment of or disclogure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

29, Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management proposes to add the tatal gain for the yvear ended 31 March 2019 of JFY 1,120 million to
the retained earnings. This proposal has been reflected in the accounts,

05 July 2019

Managing Directors

Hircyuki Muroenachii Yuko Dernoto

OTHER INFORMATION

Auditor’s report

The report of the auditors, Ermst & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6.
Appropriation of result - Provision in the Company's articles of association

In accordance with Article 20 of the Compary's articles af association, the net result shall be free at the
disposal of the General Meeting,
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x

(HSI(T)/ZHSI(T-1) - 1)

HSILI(T):
HSILI(T-1):
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T
HIBOR:
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:

T-1
11

Q)
Q)
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0000000
2020 y| 2018 22 80 8,200
225
1950 1949 16
1970
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20,188.97 25,020.79 16,748.69 25,374.67 30,841.69
14,247.32 12,699.12 9,874.67 14,011.07 16,327.56
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
19,984.25 | 19,125.99 [ 19,944.23 [ 20,792.29 | 22,295.03 | 23,042.78
16,327.56 17,438.18 17,369.96 16,780.99 20,709.45 21,164.86
Bloomberg
)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
9,051.53 8,326.57 9,038.74 7,015.23 5,670.84
7,269.36 6,289.54 6,516.88 4,929.88 4,447.28
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
5,670.84 5,482.38 5,433.37 5,524.01 4,952.06 4,877.98
5,164.79 5,196.17 5,083.06 4,944.22 4,758.78 4,668.60
Bloomberg
)

207/223



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

ooooodo
200
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
266.45 262.63 230.56 376.03 371.77
206.87 171.49 172.24 226.50 213.03
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
286.26 236.59 239.94 256.72 260.40 249.38
213.85 218.35 213.03 205.11 247 .44 235.22
Bloomberg
)
200
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
968.06 1,061.55 1,035.71 887.36 890.83
848.07 853.37 889.94 689.12 686.00
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
890.75 880.47 890.83 893.17 812.42 832.80
773.45 845.23 838.62 796.15 791.14 810.61
Bloomberg
)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
97,741.36 50,080.55 35,750.10 11,287.72 2,490.85
38,902.54 17,065.71 10,936.15 1,926.18 1,084.99
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
1,429.55 1,434.59 1,747.05 1,663.03 1,183.50 1,076.44
1,105.56 1,174.25 1,113.78 1,214.15 978.64 924 .56
Bloomberg
)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
17,282.81 18,661.12 16,245.14 16,844.20 17,349.46
13,008.66 12,892.62 12,689.91 14,437.73 13,224.51
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
15,019.06 15,164.76 15,647.78 16,150.02 17,304.89 16,762.76
13,998.75 14,634.85 15,151.80 15,228.30 16,093.50 15,959.47
Bloomberg
)
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
6,843.90 6,609.49 6,650.32 6,114.68 6,317.04
5,864.94 5,616.84 5,851.50 5,639.84 5,546.42
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
6,129.53 5,986.79 5,882.85 5,865.28 5,702.58 5,717.14
5,912.15 5,882.02 5,786.83 5,692.79 5,495.70 5,582.66
Bloomberg
)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
19,692.15 7,657.50 1,831.24 2,062.91 3,834.26
7,251.21 1,639.20 769.87 1,031.06 1,208.97
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
3,834.26 2,951.24 2,073.35 1,900.30 2,263.39 2,348.70
2,985.29 1,846.20 1,208.97 1,505.39 1,780.46 2,174.12
Bloomberg
)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
7,331.00 11,676.76 15,713.56 8,021.12 6,315.45
4,631.99 6,349.01 6,269.31 5,450.03 3,763.64
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
4,241.92 5,278.41 6,315.45 5,578.41 5,083.80 4,542 .67
3,763.64 4,260.65 4,966.93 4,936.87 4,476.22 4,376.38
Bloomberg
)
10
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
1,279.52 1,310.90 1,486.11 2,209.55 2,516.59
939.37 956.38 938.36 1,442.29 1,587.43
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
2,445.05 2,310.86 2,232.97 2,063.19 2,235.77 2,223.23
2,017.45 1,977.58 1,587.43 1,707.93 2,063.53 2,123.17
Bloomberg
)
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11
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
588.78 54414 530.48 411.02 355.69
486.78 470.73 405.49 322.40 293.31
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
320.89 321.94 355.69 341.05 308.62 302.88
293.31 298.94 302.00 309.06 295.59 296.20
Bloomberg
)
12
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
1,035.34 1,028.38 1,226.42 1,234.02 1,355.55
635.00 708.12 667.49 955.09 757.02
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
1,074.99 1,011.43 1,032.07 967.92 939.41 961.12
838.00 899.59 757.02 827.33 853.22 900.11
Bloomberg
)
13 STOXX 50
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
5,150.56 5,203.22 4,602.12 5,842.81 6,192.48
3,844.01 3,880.10 3,655.67 4,558.10 5,254.96
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
5,832.34 5,598.18 5,632.35 5,609.70 5,748.01 5,714.73
5,254.96 5,417.65 5,296.21 5,170.36 5,582.80 5,551.09
Bloomberg
)
14 S&P500 (
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
366.97 370.75 415.05 487.99 524.51
292.78 334.63 335.97 403.93 443.47
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
517.78 510.86 514.72 495.14 520.35 527.53
475.29 492.20 443.47 458.25 496.11 507.98
Bloomberg
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)
15 S&P REIT ( )
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
457.74 489.01 503.87 593.80 604 .85
387.58 406.00 414 .17 465.01 553.28
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
584.13 577.05 585.04 620.77 628.17 645.07
556.08 559.41 573.05 573.28 615.28 628.20
Bloomberg
)
16 Nifty50 @) ( )
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
3,989.95 4,264.20 3,660.20 4,617.15 5,467.50
2,095.79 2,824.25 2,319.25 2,977.00 3,930.25
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
4,772.05 4,585.20 4,640.15 4,603.15 4,676.55 5,104.60
3,930.25 4,202.25 4,252.55 4,338.30 4,281.55 4,484 .15
India Index Services & Products Limited Bloomberg
)
17 Nifty50 ( )
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
557.57 474.70 521.60 456.05 396.10
404.60 391.25 411.85 367.90 337.25
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
396.10 382.70 380.65 377.20 379.60 370.90
361.00 366.70 364.45 366.15 363.20 347.65
India Index Services & Products Limited Bloomberg
)
18 70
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
33,197.05 39,564.81 39,227.86 45,782.80 47,746.38
25,848.62 30,917.41 28,026.49 36,706.29 37,031.05
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
47,148.27 44,279.65 44,131.92 42,118.14 42,513.28 42,464 .68
42,310.57 42,508.57 37,031.05 38,554.77 40,581.28 40,650.20
Bloomberg
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)
19 S&P/JPX
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
171.172 218.670 231.460 278.681 288.258
134.962 165.015 174.126 219.578 225.787
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
284.135 267.678 269.015 251.723 258.667 258.351
258.437 258.933 225.787 237.268 245.956 249.621
Bloomberg
)
20 REIT
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
3,618.247 3,797.710 3,950.453 3,847.177 4,172.403
2,695.723 2,930.985 3,181.302 3,423.293 3,591.120
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
4,021.660 4,162.626 4,172.403 4,287.951 4,328.179 4,527.365
3,953.139 3,996.349 3,987.744 4,033.305 4,244.710 4,281.157
Bloomberg
)
21 Al 70
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
26,554.88 30,417.57 30,186.35 36,675.01 38,373.24
20,665.33 25,011.42 22,188.60 28,581.10 28,161.23
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
35,869.25 33,244.78 33,432.41 32,038.50 32,642.86 32,601.81
31,667.12 32,074.79 28,161.23 29,208.32 31,024.81 31,357.65
Bloomberg
)
22 30
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
18,543.86 21,888.47 18,931.34 24,082.17 25,957.90
12,799.38 16,808.16 12,520.14 17,666.71 16,457.87
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
22,523.36 20,513.37 19,870.34 18,286.49 18,557.30 18,660.27
19,091.45 18,967.98 16,457.87 16,820.60 17,536.51 17,585.33
Bloomberg
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)
23 50
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
17,286.24 22,962.94 22,303.93 26,078.87 27,725.06
13,102.29 16,641.50 18,832.58 21,746.35 22,879.73
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
27,725.06 25,893.51 26,049.70 24,884.73 26,040.03 26,034.02
25,180.87 24,960.77 22,879.73 24,017.86 24,545.46 25,210.33
Bloomberg
)
24
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
- 1,231.25 1,326.35 1,748.22 1,820.28
- 991.18 941.42 1,295.05 1,279.74
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
1,700.69 1,593.06 1,587.28 1,449.27 1,520.94 1,541.85
1,472.33 1,512.37 1,279.74 1,345.49 1,430.58 1,465.53
Bloomberg
)
25
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
17,935.64 20,868.03 19,494.53 22,939.18 24,270.62
13,910.16 16,795.96 14,952.02 18,335.63 19,155.74
2018 2018 2018 2019 2019 2019
10 11 12
24,270.62 22,486.92 22,574.76 20,773.56 21,556.51 21,822.04
21,149.80 21,507.54 19,155.74 19,561.96 20,333.17 20,977.11
Bloomberg
)
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Independent auditor’s report
To: the shareholder and managing directors of Nomura Europe Finance NV.

Report on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 included in the annual

report

Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 of Nomura Europe Finance
NYV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financia position of
Nomura Europe Finance NV. asat 31 March 2019, and of its result and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019
The following statements for the year then ended: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows
The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
Basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht
accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid
van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants, a regulation
with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregel s accountants (VGBA,
Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our

opinion.
Materiality
Materiality JPY 8,890 million (31 March 2018: JPY 8,980 million)
Benchmark applied 0.5% of ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financia liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Explanation We have chosen ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated

at fair value through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe the total balance of
these accounts is the most important metric for the users of the financial statements.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are
material for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatements in excess of JPY 445 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view
must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors.
The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.
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These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matters are in line with prior year.

Risk

Our audit
approach

Key observations

Risk

Our audit
approach

Key observations

The portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance NV. comprises of non-listed derivatives where the values are
based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-market
observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

We consider the fair value of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the relative size of the related accounts as compared to the total
bal ance sheet and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with a resulting risk for
incorrect valuation of the derivative financial instruments.

We have verified the valuation of derivatives by testing controlsin place, including those within the
model validation process and the independent price verification process. Furthermore, we tested the most
significant valuation inputs by comparison of these inputs to independently sourced market rates and
performed independent testing on fair values of positions held with the support of our internal valuation
specidlists.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Based on our procedures, we consider the valuation of derivative financia instruments to be appropriate.

The disclosures on derivative financial instruments meet the requirements of EU-IFRS.

The portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance NV. comprises of financial liabilities where the values are
based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-market
observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

We consider the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements as a key audit matter due to the relative size of the
account as compared to the total balance sheet and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the
estimates with aresulting risk for incorrect valuation of the financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

We have verified the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss by
testing the related controlsin place. Furthermore, we performed substantive testing on the valuation,
including comparison of valuation inputs to independently sourced market rates and independent testing
of fair valuation models with the support of our internal valuation specialists.

In addition, we tested the correct designation and valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss on initia application of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments including valuation adjustments
relating to own credit risk as at 1 April 2018.

Lastly, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Based on our procedures, we consider the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss to be appropriate.

The disclosures on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss meet the
reguirements of EU-IFRS.

220/223



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

Risk Nomura Europe Finance NV. adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financia Instruments asfrom 1 April 2018. IFRS 9
establishes anew credit risk impairment model based on expected losses. The impairment allowance is
based on the expected credit |osses associated with the probability of default in the next 12 months unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the alowance is based
on the probability of default over the expected life of the instrument.

We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to ffiliates as disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the size of the loan portfolio, the inherent complexity of applying
IFRS 9, and given that an impairment may have a material effect on the income statement.

Our audit We have verified the valuation of loans and advances to affiliates by obtaining an understanding of the
approach impairment process and model. We assessed the model used to calculate the expected credit loss with the
support of our internal specialists. We verified the criteriafor identifying significant increasein credit
risk and tested the accuracy of internal credit ratings.
With the support of our internal specialists, we assessed the determination of the probability of default
including forward-looking information. Furthermore, we recal culated the impairment allowance at
transition date and at year-end.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.
Key observations  Based on our procedures, we consider the valuation of loans and advances to &ffiliates to be appropriate.

The disclosures on loans and advances to affiliates meet the requirements of EU-IFRS.

Report on other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains other
information that consists of:

The managing directors report

Other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
I's consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our
audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements. By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is
substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the managing directors
report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Engagement

We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance NV. and have operated as statutory auditor
for more than 10 years. The most recent rotation of the signing external auditor was for the audit of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2013. Rotation of the signing external auditor is one of our safeguards to maintain our auditor
independence.

Description of responsibilities for the financial statements

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin

accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is
responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.
Our responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objective isto plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not
detect all material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the
audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our audit included among others:
I dentifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures
Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine the key audit matters those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these matters
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in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter isin the public interest.

Amsterdam, 5 July 2019

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

P.J.A.J. Nijssen
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